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Annual Report of the Members of the Corporation

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their Annual Repaort including the Financial Statements of the
Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Activities

During the year the Group continued to provide services to the Cook Islends community on behalf of the
Government, including the operations of the ports and airports on the islands of Aitutaki and Rarotonga, the
electricity supply to Aitutaki and Rarotonga, and the operations of the Bank of Cook Islands.

The Corporation managed all Government land and buildings throughout the Cock Islands including commercial
properties, residential properties, Government Ministries, Government Funded Agencias, public schools and
public hospitals.

Objectives

The Corporation was established by an Act of Parliament, the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act (1998).
The Act provides for the contral and management of Government Assets and undertakings. Specific objectives
of the Corporation are outlined in the Act, and include:

Efficient Management of Assets
This involvas the management of Government lands and buildings. and the statutory management of
subsidiaries and state owned entarprises,

FPrivatisation

The Act ensures that the Corperation does not compete in trading activities where the private sector is willing
and able tc carry out those activities, unless in the opinion of the Board it is in the public interest that the
Corporation becomes involved to ensure that a particular trading activity is provided on a reliable, sustainable
and equitable basis.

To be socially Responsible
This objective of the Corporation provides a balance between the maximisation of profits, and the recognition of
the Government's social responsibility in the perfermance of the Corporation's functions.

Results
Group

30 June

In thousands of New Zealand Dollers 2022
Surplusf{Deficit) after tax {730)
Total assets 428,31 4 10,066
Owners' equity 258,632?- s 8 1,250
STATUTORY CORPORATIONS
Airport Authority

The Airport Authority is governed under the Airports and Airport Authorities Act (1968-1969). The Authority is
responsible for the management of the international airport on Rarotonga and the domestic airpert on Aitutaki.

The Authority has total assets of $73,795,000 and equity of $72,526,000 at 30 June 2023. It made a tax paid
loss of $577,000 this year.
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Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation

The Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation was established in Novernber 2003, under the Bank of the
Cook Islands Act 2003, following the committee raview under the Minister of Bank of the Cook Isiands to
ensura the agencies charter rernained in line with the Government’s commitment to financial reform.

The Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation has total assets of $144,039,000 and equity of $18,390,000
at 30 June 2023. It made a profit after tax of $680,000 this year.

Cook Isfands Government Property Corporation :

The Corporation was established by the Cook Islands Government Property Corporation Act (1969} to manage
Government assets with its governing body being the Ministers of the Government. The major assets cwned
by Cook Islands Government Property Cerporation are Government land and buildings, and equity investments.

The Corporation generatad rental revenuas on its buildings portfolio. These revenues are transferred to Cook
Istands Investment Corporation in accordance with Section 31 (2} of the Cook Islands Investrment Corporation
Act (1998). All administration and management expenses ralating to assets owned by the Corporation are
incurred by Cook Islands Investment Corporation.

The Corporation has fotal assets of $73,844,000 and equity of $72,886,000 at 30 June 2023. It made a loss of
$1,885,000 this year. The Corporation is tax exempt.

Ports Authority

The management of the commercial poris at Avatiu, Rarotonga and Arutanga, Aitutaki rests with the Ports
Authority, under the Ports Authority Act {1994-1995).

The Authority has total assets of $34,231,000 and equity of $13,196,000 at 30 June 2023. It made a loss of
$405,199 for this year.

Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation

The Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation is governed by the Broadcasting Corporation Act (1989). With the
functions of providing radio and television service privatised, Cook Islands Broadeasting Corporation is currently
dormant.

Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation has nil total assets and nil eguity at 30 June 2023. It did not trade during
the year.

Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovaro

Te Aponga Uira generates and distributes electricity to Rarotonga in accordance with its mandate under the Te
Apeonga Uira O tumu-te-Varovaro Act {1991).

Te Aponga has total assets of $60,753,000 and equity of $567,5629,000 at 30 June 2023. It made an after tax
loss of $813,000 this year.

To Tatou Vai Authority

To Tatou Vai Authority {TTV) is an Authority under the To Tatou Vai Act 2021.

The principal activity of the Authority is to ensure the availability of an adequate supply of drinkable water and
to establish and manage the treatment, collection and disposal of sewage on the Island of Rarotonga

The Authority has total assets of $2,888,000 and equity of $2,321,000 at 30 June 2023. |t made a tax paid loss
of $412,000 for this year.

COMPANIES

Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited

Cook islands Property Corporation {NZ) Limited is incorporated under the New Zealand Companies Act {1993).
The Company owns the Consulate premises in Wellington.

Cook Islands Property Corporation {NZ) Limited has total assets of $695,000 and equity of ($220,000) at 30
June 2023, It made a loss after tax of $70,000 this year.
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Swwarrow Development Corporation Limited
Suwarrow Development Corporation Limited was set up to act as a manager / licsnsor for industry in
Suwarrow. The Cornpany Is dormant.

Cook Istands Telecommunication Holdings Limited

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation is the owner of all shares in Cook Islands Telecornmunication
Heldings Limited. That entity is a holding cormpany for Gevernment's 40% interast in Telecorn Cock Islands
Lirnited {trading a3 Vodafone Cook slands). Control of Cook Islands Telecornmunication Holdings Limited rests
with the governing body of Cook lslands Government Property Corporation.

Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited has total assets of $12,422,000 and aquity of $12,385,000
at 30 June 2023, It mede a tex pald surplus of $379,000 this vear.

Bainana Court Company Limited

The Company manages the Banana Court commersial retail complex in Avarua.

The Banana Court Company Limited has total assets of $218,000 and equity of $172,000 at 30 June 2023, It
made a tax paid deficit $4,000 for this vear.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited

The Compeany ganerates and distributes electricity on the outer island of Altutaki.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited has total assets of $5,747,000 and equity of $5,168,000 at 30 June 2023, It
made a tax paid foss of $827,000 for this year.

Avaroa Cables Limited
The principal activity of Avaroa Cables Limiied is management of telecommunication networks and services.

Avarca Cables Limited has total assets of $38,195,000 and equity of [$1,563,000) at 30 June 2023. It made a
tax paid surplus of $283,000 for this year.

Accounting Policies
Acgounting policies are applied accerding to generally accepted accourting practice as applied In Intemational
Public Sector Accounting Standards {IPSAS}.

Remuneration of ClIC Divectors

Mr Fletcher Mevin received fees of $17,500 as Chairman of the Board during the year. Mrs Sharyn Paio
received $7.292 as Deputy Chair of the Board. Ms Eleanor Roi recaived $17,500 , Mr Patrick Arioka received
$7,292 and Mr Arama Wichrnan received $5,104 respectively for their roles as Directors of the Cook Islands
Investrent Corporation. Directors fees were paid to the following directors who had resigned during the year:
Michael Hanry ($29,000), Malcolm Sword ($17,417), and Caren Rangi ($29,250).

Appointment of Auditors
In comnpliance with Section 17 of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act 1898, KPMG were reappointed
as auditor for the 2023 financial year.

For and on behalf of the Members of the Corporation

WJ/WM%’/V(/)?%\/ t//L,\ (sone)

Director Director
2\ /oS /ro2y 2\ Jo< /2024
Dzte Date
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Cook Islands Investment Corporation

Report on the audit of the Corporation and Group financial statements

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Cook Islands We have audited the accompanying Corporation and
Investment Corporation (the 'Corporation’) and its Group financial statements which comprise:
subsidiaries (the 'Group’) on pages 12 to 70 present

e : - — the statement of financial position as at 30 June
fairly, in all material respects:

2023;

the Corporation and Group's financial position as 30
June 2023 and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year ended on that date;

— the Corporation and Group statements of
comprehensive revenue and expenses, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended; and

in accordance with International Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

— notes, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

< Basis for qualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) ('ISAs (NZ)'). We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Ownership, completeness and valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Corporation and Group's property, plant and equipment is carried at $0.14m and $211m respectively on the
Corporation and Group statements of financial position as at 30 June 2023. We were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2022 due to a
loss of historical accounting records. Our audit opinion on the Corporation and Group financial statements for year ended
30 June 2022 was modified in respect of this matter. Refer to note 14 for further details. Consequently, we were unable
to determine whether any adjustments to the amounts shown for property, plant and equipment in the Corporation and
Group’s statements of financial position as at 30 June 2022, or related amounts included in the Corporation and Group's
statements of comprehensive revenue and expenses for the year then ended, were necessary.

We are independent of the Corporation and Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 Infernational
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (Including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the
New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) ('|ESBA
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (NZ) are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

Our firm has also provided other services to the Corporation and Group in relation to taxation. Subject to certain restrictions,
partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the Corporation and Group on normal terms within the ordinary
course of trading activities of the business of the Corporation and Group. These matters have notimpaired our independence
as auditor of the Corporation and Group. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the Corporation and Group.

© 2024 KPMiG, a Mew Zaaland Partnarship and a mamber firm of the KPMG global erganization of independant member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited
by guarantee. All rights reserved.



1 = Otherinformation

The Members, on behalf of the Corporation and Group, are responsible for the other information included in the financial
statements. Other information includes the Annual Report of the Members of the Corporation. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Corporation and Group financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Corporation and
Group financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

i3 Useof thisindependent auditor's report

This independent auditor’s report is made solely to the shareholders as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in the independent auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the shareholders as a body for our audit work, this independent auditor’s report, or any of the opinions we have
formed.

4% Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation and Group
forthe financial statements

The Members of the Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation and Group, are responsible for:
— the preparation and fair presentation of the Corporation and Group financial statements in accordance with IPSAS;

— implementing necessary intemnal control to enable the preparation of a set of Corporation and Group financial
statements that is fairly presented and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

— assessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

£~ Auditor'sresponsibilities for the audit of the Corporation and
Group financial statements

Our objective is:

— to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

— to issue an independent auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
NZ will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate , they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



e

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), the auditor exercises professional judgement and maintains professional
scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor also:

— lIdentifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the auditor's opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

— Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management. ’

— Concludes on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by those charged with
governance and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If the auditor
concludes that a material uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the
auditor’s opinion. The auditor’s conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The auditor is responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. The auditor remains solely responsible for the audit
opinion.

— The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the
auditor identifies during the audit.

— The auditor also provides those charged with governance with a statement that the auditor has complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on the auditor's independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

— From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

be communicated in the auditor's report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. This description forms part of our
independent auditor’s report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is David Gates.

For and on behalf of
KETY -

Rarotonga

318t May 2024
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses

For the year ended 30 June 2023

In thousands of New Zealand Doilars Note 202 ‘ 2022
Revenue from exchange transactions -
Airport landing fees 3,521 o -
Electricity services 20,267 -
Fees on banking portfolio assets 3ic) 1,651 -
Interest on banking portfolio assets 3(c) 8307 -
Port services 2,716 -
Communicetions Income 3,956 -
Rental income 3(0) 1,924 ; 608
Interest income 3lc) 624 1 34
Total revenue from exchange transactions 42 968 ?'f 2 642
Other revenue _
Aid funding 3lc) 986 ! 170
Crown appropriations 3lc) 13,447 7,692
Dividends received 3() - -
Sundry income 5 879 : 49
Total other revenue 15,312 | 7,911
Total Revenue 58,278 ., 8,553
The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an infegral part of these financial statements
12

G RAROT,
‘ga o "‘wq’
arkad
for
Identification
Purposa

x.




Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Parent
In thousands of New Zeafand Dollars Note 2022 2022
Expenditure
Personnel costs ; 14,850 1,453
Depreciation and amortisation 14,1816 . 11,668 81
Directors fees and expenses 900 179
Increase / {decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 21 -
Finance costs 2,444 -
Lege! and professional fees 1,764 -
Rental and operating lease costs 812 4585
Office communication 800 32
Repairs and maintenance 8,976 5,857
Insurance 1,882 204
Fuel 8,401 -
Covid-12 discounts 292 -
Cther expenses 6 9,08 1,224
Total expenditure 53,796 9,485
Other gains/{losses)
Gain / {loss) on disposai of assets 10 -
Unrealised foreign exchange gain / {loss) {2,590} -
Realised foreign exchange gain / (loss) 127 -
Share of profit/ {loss) of equity accounted investees 20ia) (365) -
Impairment loss -
Total other gains/{losses) {2,818) -
Surplus / (deficit) before income tax (8,3386) (912)
Income tax expense 18 592 182
Surplus / {deficit) for the year (7,744) (730)
Other comprehensive revenue and expenses for the -
Total comprehensive revenue and expenses for the year {7,744) 1730
The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements
13
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2023

Parent

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Note 20272 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents g8 E 291
Term deposits 9 791
Trade receivables 10 2
Dividends receivable 11 -
Inventories 13 1
Work in progress receivable 11g) 6,444
Prepayments : 54
Sundry and other receivables 693
Related party receivables 11 275
Banking portfolio investments 12 -
Future Income Tax Benefit 18 182
Taxation receivable 18 672
Total current assets 363 123,080 9,405
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 213,808 125
Investment properties 16 5,578« -
Banking portfolic investrments 12 68,621 -
Deferred tax assets 18 1,807 9
Intangible assets 1% 1,742 -
Investment in associate 20(a) ‘ 11,967 : -
Investment in subsidiaries 20{b) 527
Investment in shares 19 128 -
Related party receivables 11 54 -
Term deposits 9 938 : -
Total non-current assets 305,235 661
Total assets 428,315 10,066
The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial staterments
14
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2023

Group Parent
Note 202 2022
In thousands of Mew Zealand Dollars
Equity
Capital contribution and retained eamnings :
o 258,632 ; 1,250
Total Equity 258,632 ; 1,250/
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payakles 17 7,285 - 502
Banking customer deposits 21 111,668 - -
Dividend Payable - -
Customer bonds 1170 48
Borrowings 22 500 -
Deferred revenue liability 133 129
Employee entitlements 7 792 : 130
Income in advance 615 : 14
Related party payahles 1M1 . 768 i 1,510
Capital project liability Mig) - 6,444 6,445
Income tax payable 18 277 -
Total current liabilities 129,65 8,778
Non current liabilities
Banking customer deposits 21 857 -
Deferred taxation liability 18 230 -
Deferred revenue liability 38 38
Employea entitlemants 7 5 -
Borrowings 22 38,903 - -
Total non current liabilities 40,033 : 38
Total liabilities 169,683 8,816
Total equity and liabilities 428,315 10,066
The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements
15
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Group
Capital Total equity
contributions &
retained earnings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Balance at 1 July 2021 261,162 261,152

Changes in net assets/equity for 2022

Tax benefit on dividends paid 18 - -

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year (7,744) {7,744)
Total recognised revenue and expenses for the year (7.744) (7.744)
Transactions with owners of the Parent:

Fquity injection by owners 1) 5,224 5,224

Dividends -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of

the Parent ‘ 5,224 5,224
Balance at 30 June 2022 258,832 258,632

?E‘Tlancé'at 30 June 2023 e

The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements
16
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Parent
Capital Total equity
contributions &
retained earnings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Balance at 1 July 2021 1,980 1,980

Changes in net assetsfequity for 20272

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year {730) {730)
Total recognised revenue and expenses for the year (730) (730)

Transactions with owners of the Farent:

Equity injection by owners - -
Dividends .
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of

the Parent - -
Balance at 30 June 2022 1,280 1,250

The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements

17
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Statement of Cashflows
For the year ended 30 June 2023

in thousands of New Zealand Doilars

Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2022 2022
Cash flows from operating activities :
Cash receipts from customers 32,655 669
Crown appropriation 11,993 . 5 7,278
PCBOC 1,045 sl e 334
Dividends received S 600 -
Interest received 8,970 34
Aid funding 815 -
Net increase/{decrease) in client deposits 5,768’ -
Net investment in banking portfolio 2,256: -
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {50,229) {9,411)
Interest paid {2,444). -
Income tax patd (56) .- ] -
Met cash from operating activities 10773 v g {1,096)
Cash flows from investing activities BT e
Net acquisition/disposal of property, plant and equipment (4,168) {2,799) = {50)
Net acquisition/sale of intangibles . (4}260] 178y i -
Proceeds from / {acquistion of) term deposits {14,518) {23}
Proceeds from Investees -
Loans to related parties 1,423 231
Net cash from investing activities (18,070) 158
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings -
Proceeds from related parties (5)
Equity introduced -
Dividends paid -
Net cash from financing activities (5)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (943)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,234
Movement in Doubtful Debts Provision -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 291
Made up of: REo
Gross Total bank balances and on-call deposits 23,2787, 291
Expected Credit Loss on Bank Balances (78): -
Net Total cash and cash equivalents 23,199: 291

The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements




Statement of Cashflows

For the year ended 30 June 2023

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

2022
Surplus for the year after tax (730
Depreciation & amortisation 61
Doubtful debts -
(Gains)/losses on asset disposal -
Unrealised Foreign exchange losses/gains) -
Plant and Equipment acquired in non-exchange -
Impairment on plant-property and equipment -
Share of loss from equity accountad investment -
Expected Credit Less on Cash
Tax Impact on Dividends
Working capital adjustments Pl
{Increase) / decrease in receivables & prepayments {1,858) i 13
Increase / (decraase) In payables & other accruals FOO {119}
{Increase) / decrease in work in progress (3,026)1 {3,028}
{Increase) / decrease in bank loan portfolies 2,258 -
{Increase) / decrease in inventories (1,635): 1
Increase / (decrease) in project liabilities 2,600 362 3,044
Increase / (decrease) in deferrad income liability (170) 647 {170}
Increase / (decrease) in income in advance (102} 14
Increase / (decrease) in net tax payable (214) '+ 44) 0
Increase / {decraase) In future income tax benefit {463). {13 (182)
{Increase) / decrease in deferred tax asset 101 g -
Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liahility {73) :” e -
Increase / (decrease) in customar deposits B,768 5 T -
Net cash flows from operating activities 10,7737 i 712 {1,096)
The notes on pages 20 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Reporting entity
Cook Islands Investment Corporation is domiciled In the Cock Islands and incorporated under the Cook [slands
Investment Act 1998, Its financial statemants comply with the Act.
Financial statements for Cook Islands Investment Corporation {the "Corporation”) and consclidated financial
statements are presented. The consclidated financial statements comprise the Corporation and its subsidiaries {the
"Group™} and the Group's Interests in associates. The Corporation is an in-substance subsidiary of the Cook Islands
Government.
The Corporation’s principal activities are property investment and management. The Group also owns entities that
operate in the banking, communication, power supply, sirport, and port sectors. The Corporation’s registered office
is located in Rarotonga, Cook Islands.

Throughout these financial statements, unless stated otherwise, references to the 'Corporation' or 'Parent’ refer to
Cook Islands Investment Corporation.

Note 2 Basis of preparation
a} Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with and comply with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). Soma antities within the group apply IFRS, NZIFRS and
PBE standards in thelr individual financial statements. The policies adopted by these entities are in line with IPSAS or
where IPSAS does not have a relavant standard, other authoritative support has been used such as IFRS. The
policies adopted ky the Group are infine with IPSAS.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

b} Basis of measurement
‘The financial statements have besn prepared on the historical cost basis modified for the revaluation of certsin
assets. The statement of cash flows is prepared using the direct method.

c) Going concern

While the Group has reported a net current liability position of $3.372 millicn (2022: $6.5670 million), the Directors
consider the use of the geing concern assumption in preparing the financial statements as appropriate and that the
Group can meet its obligations as required.

COVID-19 Pandemic

Airport Authority

The situation around COVID-19 evolved and the efficacy of the counter measures undertaken by counterpart
countries were successful, the Cock Islands Government were able 1o lift the border restrictions. The opening of the
borders resulted in a significant increase in International Flights from January 2022, and subseguently resulted in a

significant increasa in the Authority's revenues.
With regards to these financial statements, the Group has considered the likely impact of COVID-19 in areas such as

our provisioning for doubtful debts, considering any impairment triggers relevant to PP&E and intangible assets and
going concern. To date the impact on these areas has been [imited.

Te Aponga Uira

During the previous financial year, Te Aponga Uira provided the following COVID-19 discounts:

For the 2 months, December 2021 and January 2022, 1o customers who declared financial harship - Domestic
customers received a $50 discount and Commercial and Demand customers received 50%.

With regards to these financial statements, the Group has considered the likely impact of COVID-13 in areas such as
our provisioning for doubtful debts, considering any impairment triggers relevant to PP&E and intangible assets and
going concern. To date the impact on these areas has been limited.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited

The company provided discounting in response to the COVID-19 pandemic but this ceased in the July 2021 billing
cycle. With regards to these financial statements, the Group has considered the likely impact of COVID-19 In areas
such as our provisioning for doubtful debts, considering any impairment triggers relevant to PP&E and intangible
assats and going concern. To date the impact on these areas has been limited.
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Cook Istands Investment Corporation
Annual repert for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

Note

Note

2 Basis of preparation

d) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidatad financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the functional and reporting
currency of the Group and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ($000) except where indicated otherwise.

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out helow have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

a) Consolidation

Controlled entities

The controlled entities are all those entities {including special purpose entities) over which the controlling entity has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies. Contralled entities are fully consclidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the controlling entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between members of the group
are eliminated in full. The accounting policies of the controlled entities are consistent with the policies adopted by
the controlling entity.

b) Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, aver the financial and
operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting power of another entity.

Investrents in associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method and are
recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the surplus or deficit, after adjustments to align
the accounting policies with thase of the Group, frem the date that significant influence or joint control commences
unti! the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of the
investment, including any long-term investments that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf
of the investae.

c) Revenue recognition

Goods and services

Revenue comprises the amounts received and receivable for goods and services supplied to custorners in the
ordinary course of business. Revenue is stated exclusive of Value Added Tax. Revenue from the sale of goods in
the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receiveble, net of
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists that the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, racovery of the consideration is
probable, and the revenue and associated costs can be estimated and measured relisbly. If it is prohable that
discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured relighly, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of
revenue as the sales are recognised.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

c) Revenue recognition (continued)

interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate discounts astimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset o that asset's net carrying amount. The method
applies this yield to the principal cutstanding te determine interest income each period.

Fee and commission

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate of a financial asset or
financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest. For example, loan establishment fees,
together with related direct costs, are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on a
loan once drawn.

Fees and commissions that relate 1o the execution of a significant act are recognised when the significant act has
been completed.

Fees charged for providing ongeing services (for example, maintaining and administering existing facilities) are
recognised as income over the period the service is provided.

Rental income
Rental incorne fram investrent property is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Crown appropriation

Crown Appropriation revenue is provided by the Cook Islands Government through the Budget Estimates and
approved by the Appropriation Bill. Revenue is intended to be spent within the same financial year. Revenue
received but not spent at balance date is recorded as deferred revenue liability in the Statement of Financial Position.

Aid funding

Aid Funding revenus relates to funding received from aid donors for specified projects. Funding received in advance
is recorded as deferred revenue liability and recognised as revenue when allowable costs are incurred and any
conditions are met. Where allowable costs have been incurred but funding not received, the Corporation recognises
& receivable up to the amount of approved funding.

Concessionary Loans

When the Greup receives a loan at an interest rate that is lower than market tarms {concessionary loan}, the
difference betwaen the loan proceeds and the fair value of the loan {calculated using rarket terms) is recognised as
revenue if there ara no conditions attached to the loan. To the extent that there are conditions attached to the loan
that would result in sarly repayment of the loan if these conditions are satisfied, a deferred revenue liaoility for the
amount of the difference between the ioan proceeds and the fair value of the loan is recognised. Revenue is then
recognised as the Group satisfies its conditions.

Insurance proceeds
Proceeds from insurance claims are racognised as revanue when claims have been assessed and approved. This
revenue is measured at the fair value of the amount received or receivable.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government Grants

The nature of the Government Grant is funding from the Green Climate Fund to carry out agreed activities at the
Bank in the Group in readiness for climate funding. As at the reporting date the Group has submitted the required
reports on which funding was conditional and their review and acceptance Is pending. A final report and audit of the
financial repost is required following the completion of the activities.

CAPEX Income

The Group receives funding frem the Crown for specific capital projects. When related costs are expense in nature,
the associated funding is recognised as CAPEX Income in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.
When related costs are capital in nature {i.e. resulting in Property, Plant and Eguipment additions), these are
recognised as Capital Injections in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The fair value of revenue from the Crown has

Donated Assets

Where a physical asset is gifted to or acquired by the Group for nil censideration or at a subsidised cost, the asset is
racognised at fair value and the difference between the consideration provided and fair value of the asset is
recognised as revenue. The fair velue of donated assets is determined as follows:

-For new assets, far value is usually determinad by reference to the retail price of the same or similar assets at the
iime the asset was received.

-For used assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to market inflation for assets of a similar type,
conditicn, and age.

Rendering of Services

Rendering of services at a price that is not approximately equal to the value of the service provided is considered a
non-exchangs transaction. This also includes rendering of services where charges have been waived in lieu of
special licensed for domestic shipping services and rental of port properties and facilities. Revenue from such
subsidised services is recognised when the Group issues the invoice or bills for the service.

d) Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive ravenue and expenses on an accrual basis.

Salaries & wages

Salaries & wages are recognised on &n accrual besis and include employer contributions for the government
superannuation scheme.

Interest expense

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue & Expenses &s it accrues using the effective interest method.

Lease payments
Leases antered into by the Group as lessee are operating leases, and the operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

e) Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tex is recoegnised in surplus or deficit
except 1o the extent that it relates to & business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in changes in
net assets/equity.

Current tax is the expected tax paysble or receivable on the taxable surplus or deficit for the year, using tex rates
enacted or substantively enacied &t the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

A tax benefit is recognised in eguity for dividends paid by Cook Islands tax paying entities to another Cook Islands tax
payer.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of terporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

» ternporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or ligbilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable surplus or deficits; and

* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax retes enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
nasitions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities
are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and
prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of jucdgements
about future events. New information may become availakle that causes the Group to change its judgement
regarding the adeguacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilites will impact tax expense in the period
that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate 1o income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the seme taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend 1o settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneoushy.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for tax credits and deductible temporary differences. A future income tex benefit
{F'TR) is recognised for unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets and FITB's are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and
FITB's are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

f) Investment Property

Investmant property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for edministrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

Residential buildings held for the primary purpose of providing low income housing have been classified as property,
plant, and eguipment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investmeant property. The cost of self-
consiructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributablé
to bringing the investrnent property to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item} is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
Expenses.

a) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment is held at cost with the exception of buildings. Cost of buildings has been
determined from historical cost or deemed cost based on previcus valuations performed as follows:

i} Buildings transferred to the Group by the Cook Islands Government are included at their deemed cost, being
the valuation initially recorded in the 1996/7 statutory accounts of the Government of the Cook Islands less
accumulated depreciation. Cther assets donated by the Cook Islands Government (ultimate parent} or
transferred from Ministries of the Cook Islands Government are recognised at deemed cost being the value
nominated by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management for the Cock Islends or relevant Ministry
and are recognised directly in equity as a contribution from owner.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

ii} For all other items of property, plant and sguipment the cost is the value of the consideration given 1o acguire
the assets and the value of ather directly attributable costs which have been incurred in bringing the assets to
the location and condition necessary for their intended service.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructad
assets includes the following:

* the cost of materials and direct labour;

= any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use;

» when the group has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of

dismantling and remaving the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

= capitalised borrowing costs.

Refer to note 14 for further details.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis so as 1o write off the cost of the fixed assets to their expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives. Freehold land is not deprecieted. The estimated useful lives are as

follows:

|.eased land and leasehold improvements term of the lease
Buildings 5-50 years
Furniture and fittings 4-1Q years
Plant and equipment 2-20 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
Rescue fire vehicles 3-20 years
Office equipment 2-10 years
Marine equipmeant 5 years
Whart structure 40 years
Wharf fixtures 5-20 years
Runways 5-98 years
Electricity distrioution network 5-20 years

{ sased assets are depreciated over tha shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably cartain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount, or recoverable service amount, if
the asset's carrving amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount or recoverable service amount,

The Group derecognises items of property, plant and equipment andfor any significant part of an asset upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its continuing use. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceads and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.

When an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration it Is initially measured at fair
value. For new assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to the retail price of the same or similar assets
&t the time the asset was received. For used assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to market prices
far assets of a similar type conditicn and age. YWhean parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have cifferent
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plent and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and eguipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensad as incurred.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

h} Leases

Group as a lessee

Operating leases are those leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and kenefits relating to ownership of
the leased item to the group. Opersting lease payments are reccgnised as an expense in surplus or deficiton a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group does not hold any finance leases.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs that are incurred in determining an operating lease are added 1o the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term.

Rent received from an operating lease is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

i} Intangible assets
Intangible assets include costs incurred in acquiring and building software and computer systems (software).
Software is amortised using the straightline method over its expected useful life.

At each reporting date, the intangible assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment if any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the assets are estimated and compared against the existing carry value. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs 1o sell and its value in use. Where the existing carrying value
exceeds the recoverable amount, the difference is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue &
Expenses.

Costs incurred In planning or evaluating software proposals, or in maintaining systems after implementation are not
capitalised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

i Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets {other than deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets
recoverable amount is estimated.

The group's assets that do not generate separate cash inflows are tested for impairment as part of testing the overall
group’s assets.

Impairment losses are racognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

For assets an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Recegnition

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

Classification & measurement

The Group's financial assets are all classified and measured at amortised cost.

The Group does not have any financial assets categorised as fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)
or fair value through profit or Joss (FYTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
® it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and
= the coptractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that ars solely payments of
principal and interest.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit er loss and presented in other gains/(losses),
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the
Statermnent of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

k} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash holdings, foreign currency cash holdings, shart term cash investments and
are carried at amortised cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

1} Loans

Within the Group, Bank of the Cook Islands (“the Bank") issues loans. These are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the group does not intend to sell
immediately or in the near term. They arise when the Bank provides money to a debtor with no intention of trading
the loans and advances. After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment loss.

Loans include direct finance provided to customers such as current accounts and term loans.

Business Continuity Credit Facility
The Group administers lending on behalf of its ultimate parent, the Government of the Cook Islands. Through its
agency agreemant under the Business Continuity Cradit scheme. Under this scheme eligible businesses are granted
low interest loans as a form of relief from the Covid-19 impacts. Loans distributed under this scheme are not legal
assets of the Group and therefore are not recognised on the Group's Statement of Financial Position.
m)} Term deposits
This comprises interest-bearing deposits held with other banks and are measured at amortised cost in the Statement
of Financiai Position.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Income tax receivable

This comprises income tax receivable as income tax payments made exceed the current tax due. This will be settled
by receipt of refund or used te meet future income tax payments and is measured at amortised cost in the
Staternent of Financial Position.

o) Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group's end of
period valuations of certain loans denominated in SDR {Special Drawing Rights - Unit of account used by the
International Monetary Fund and other international organizations. Its value is based on a basket of key international
currencies that currently consists of the euro, yen, pound sterling and the US dollar).

The Group doss not hold or issus derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The Group has not adopted
hedge accounting.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valug on the date a derivative cantract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at thelr fair value at each balance date with the resulting gain or loss recognized in surplus or deficit.
The full fair value of a forward foreign exchange derivative is classified as current as the contract is due for
settlement within 12 months of kalance date.

p) Trade, sundry and other receivables
These include trade receivables from customers, other receivables, including acerued interest on term deposits.
These are carried at amortised cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

q) Identification and measurement of Impairment
A forward-locking expected loss model is applied to financial assets in accordance with IPSAS 41 Financial
Instrurnents . All of the Group’s financial assets are classified as amortised cost.
The Group performs an impairment assessment based on expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.
The ECL refers to the weighted average of the credit losses of financial instruments that are weighted by
the risk of default. Credit loss refers to the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable from
the contract and all cash flows expected to. be received, discounted at the original real interest rate by the
Graup, that is, the present value of all cash shortages.
ECL is calcutated based on a function of the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default.
The Group appplies ECL model separately for each financial asset category measured at amortised cost.
The Group considers impairment using the ECL model for the following financial assets that are not measured at
FVTPL:

® Cash and cash equivalents

® Term Deposits

" Trade, sundry and other raceivables

® Banking portfolic investments

i) Impairment of Cash and cash equivalents and Term deposits
ECL for Cash and cash equivalents and Term deposits is calculated based on industry standard Probability of default
and loss given default based on the credit rating of each financial instituion where funds are held.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note

3) Significant accounting policies {continued}
q) ldentification and measurement of Impairment (continued)

ii) Impairment of Trade, sundry and other receivables
In assessing impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and
the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgement as to whether current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

As trade and other receivables are normally paid within 30 days and do not have a significant financing component
the Group has applied the simplified approach in IPSAS 41 and therefore only recognising lifetime ECL. Entities
within the Group that have signiifcant customer base, and therefore debtors, have developed a provision matrix to
determine ECL. In particular, Te Apenga Uira and Te Mana Uira o Araura, as these entities each operate in only one
geographic segment the matrix is based on customer type {Cemand, Commercial or Domastic) and debt age (ho.
days) taking into account historical loss experience for each segment adjusted for forward looking estimates

iii) Impairment of Banking portfolio investments
Segmentation of financial assets:
The Group assesses whether the credit risk has increased significantly on an individual or collective basis. For the
purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of account
instrument type.
The Groups Banking portfolio investments are grouped by the following segments:
- Business

- Personal
- Mortgege

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since
the initial recognition, and measures its expected cradit losses ("ECL") and recognises its loss provision and
changes from the prior period in the following cases:

iit if the credi risk of the financial instrument has not increased significantly, since the initial recognition, (*
internal risk grade = "Pass”), the Group measures its loss provision based on the amount equivalent io the
ECL of the financial instrument in the next 12 months;

{ii) i the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Group
measures its loss provision based on the amount of lifetime expected credit loss (ECL) of the financial instrumant.
{* Internal risk grades = special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss)

Under the above circumstances, regardless of whether the Group's assessment of credit losses is based on a
single financial instrument or a combination of financial instruments, the increase or reversal of the
loss provision resulting there from is included in the current profit and loss as an impairment loss or gain.

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit Iosses (“ECL"} on Banking portfelio
investments. Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change of their credit quality, since
initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - For financial instruments with no significant increase in credit risk {SICR) after initial
reccgnition, {internal risk grade = “Pass”), expected credit logses in the next 12 months are recognised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
q} Identification and measurement of Impairment (continued}

iii} Impairment of Banking portfolio investments (¢continued)
Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired — For financial instruments with significant increase In credit risk (SICR)
since initial recognition (internal risk grade = “Special mention”}, but no cbjeciive evidence of impairment, litetime
expected credit losses are recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired — For financial assets that show objective evidence of impairment at the end
of the reporting period, lifetime expected credit losses are recognised. This stage comprises all accounts that are
credit impaired or in default (internat risk grades = " Substandard”, ” Doubtful” or "Loss").

Under the above circumstances, regardless of whether the Group’s assessment of credit losses is based on a
single financial instrument or a combination of financial Instruments, theincrease or reversal of the
loss provision resulting there from is included in the current profit and loss as an impairment loss or gain.

Impairment is assessed for loans &t a collective and a specific individual level.
The Groups internal credit rating adopted from the guidelines provided by the Banking Prudential Statement
{BPS03} initially defines whether the financial assets are assessed at a collective or a specific individual level:

Collective Provision

Imgairment on financial assets with an internal credit rating of *Pass” or “Special Mention” is calculated through the
ECL model.

"Pass" if the asset is fully protected by the current sound worth and paying capecity of the  borrower and  the
borrower is performing in accordance with contractual terms end is expected to continue to do so.

"Special Mention' if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for mare than 30 (thirty) days but
less than 90 (ninety) days; or although currently protected, exhibits potential weaknesses which may, if
not corrected, waaken the asset or inadequately protect the Group's position at some future date.

All loans clessified in the parsonal segment are assessed in the ECL model irrespective of their probability of default
and form part of the collective provision.

Some financial assets with an internal credit rating of “Substandard”, “Doubtful” or "Loss” and have been
assessed individually for the likelihood of future credit losses through the individual provisioning method

and do notrequire a specific individual provision are assessed in the ECL model and form part of the
collective provision.

Specific Individual Provision

Financial assets with an internal credit rating of “Substandard”, "Doubtful” or “Loss” are Individually
assessed using the individual provisioning method and consider the likelihood of future credit losses by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money, past events, security held, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

'Substanderd" if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 90 days but less than
180 days; or is a renegotiated loan which has had its terms or interest rate modified because of weaknesses
or deterioration in the obligor's financial condition cr ability to repay.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
q) ldentification and measurement of Impairment {continued)

iii) Impairment of Banking portfolio investments {continued)
*Doubiful" if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 18C days but less than
360 days; orexhibits all the weaknesses of asubstandard asset and, in addition, is not because
these weakenessas make collection in full highly questionable and improbable.

"Loss" if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 36C days, unless such an
asset is well secured and legal action has actually commenced and the time to realise on collateral oron a
guarantee relating to the asset does not excaed 180 days, had been characterised a5 " Doubtful” on account of any
‘pending event’ and the event concemed has not occurred and the asset is now past due for the payment of
principal or interest for more than 540 days, whether or not the event is stil pending; orregardless of its
past due status it isotherwise considered uncollectible or considered to be of such little value that its
continuance as an asset on the hooks of the Group is not warranted provided that a Loss classification shall not
preclude the possibility of recovering the asset or securing a salvage value for it.

ECL model
ECL are estimates of credit losses and are determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time
value of money, past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group's ECL is calculated on & persegment basis with the corresponding PD, LGD and Cure Rate and
is the sum of all segment ECLs.

Where:

- Probability of default {PD): the probability that a counterparty will default;

- Loss given default {LGD): the loss that is expected to arise in the event of default

- Cure Rate (CR): the historical average % of Defaulted Loans that migrated out of a defaulted status

- Exposure at default (EAD): the estimated outstanding ameunt of credit exposure at the time of default, which is
the outstanding loan amount that is at risk of default at & certain point in time.

- Discount Factor: adjustment to calculate the impact of a future payment at time 0, which is assumed to be
reporting date. Calculated from the time ‘t' (12 month or lifetime} and the effective interest Rate (EIR)

- Overlay: Circumstances and conditions may exist that cause management to believe in the reguirement for loan
provisioning in addition to that determined by the ECL model. In this case a management overlay would be
considered.

The provision for loan impairmeant is deducted from loans in the Statement of Financial Position and the movement
for the reporting period is reflected in the Staterment of Cormprehensive Revenue & Expenses.

When a loan, within the loan book, is uncollectible, either partially or in full,it is written off against the related
provision for loan impairment. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses.

Where impairment losses recognised in previous periods have subsequently decreased or no longer exist, such
impairment losses are reversed in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses.

Refer to Note 3 'Critical estimates and judgements used in epplying accounting policies' below for update on
estimates and judgements due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownarship of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Cook Islands Investrnent Corporation
Annual report for the vear ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Recognition

Financial lizbilities are measured initially at fair value plus, for an itern not at fair value through surplus or deficit,
transaction costs that are directly attributable te its acguisition or issue.

Classification & measurement

All financial liabilities are classifiad as other financial liabilities and are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate and include: trade and other payables, banking customer deposits, related party payables, dividend
payable, and incomne tax payable.

r) Employee benefits

Long-term emplovee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees
have eamed in return for their service In the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted 1o determine its
present value. Remeasurements are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses in the
period in which they arise,

Shortterm employse benefits

Short-term smployee benefits are expensed as the relatad service is provided. A llability ls recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

s} Provisions

The Group recognises provisions when there is a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic venefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at the reporting date. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to setile the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present vaiue of
those cash flows.

1) Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised only when the shareholder's or the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised whan the obligation specified in the contract is discharged cancelled or expires.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

PRESENTATION
u}  Offsetting of income and expenses
Income and expenses are not offset unless required or permitted by an accounting standard. This generally arises in
the following circumsiances:
- where gains and losses arise from a Group of similar transactions such as foreign exchange gains and losses.

- where amounts are collected on behalf or third parties where the Group s, in substance, acting as an agent
only, or

- where costs are incurred on behalf of custorners from whom the Group is reimbursed.

v} Offsetting of financial assets and liahilities
Assets and liabilities are offset and the net armount reportad in the Statement of Financial Position anly where there
is:

- acurrent enforceable legal right to offset the asset and liability, and

- anintention and ability to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

w) Statement of cash flows

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, deposits held at
ca'l with other financial instituticns, and other short term, highly liguid, investments that are readily convertible to
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Certain cash flows have been netted in order to provide more meaningful disclosure as many of the cash flows are
received and disbursed on benalf of custorners and reflect the activities of the customer rather than those of the
Group. These include customer loans and advances, customer deposits, and related party balances.

x}) Value added tax

Income, expenses and assets are recegnised net of the amount of value added tax {VAT) except where the amount
of VAT incurred is not recoverable from the Revenus Management Division (RMD]. In these circumstances, the VAT
is recognised as part of the cost of acguisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payahles are stated with the amount of VAT included. The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or
pavable to the RMD is included as, other assets or other liabilities in the Staiement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are Included in the Staternent of Cash Flow on a net basis. The VAT components of cash Tlows arising
from investing and financing activities, which are recovarable from, ar payable to, the BMD are classified as
operating cash flows.

v) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a Hability of sufficient uncertainty that it does not qualify for recognition as a provision, but
there is a possible obligation that is higher than remote.

z) Related parties

The Group regards a relatad party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control Individually or jointly, or to
exercise significant influence over the Group, or vice versa. Members of key managerment are regarded as related
parties and comprise the directors and senior management of the Cook Islands Investmeant Corporation and Group.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in eccordance with [PSAS. However, there are a number of critical
accounting treatments which include cornplex or subjective judgments and estimates that may affect the reported
amounts of assets and lisbilities in the financial statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events thet are believed tc be
regsonable under the circurnstances.

An explanstion of the judgements and estimates made by the Group in the process of applying its sccounting
policies, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are set out
below.

Credit provisioning

The accounting policy relating to measuring the impairment of banking portfolio investments (loans & advances)
requires the Group tc assess impairment at least at each reporting date. The credit provisions raised represent
management's best estimate of the losses incurred in the ioan portfolio at balance date based on their experienced
judgement.

The use of such judgements and reascnable estimates is considered by management to be an essential part of the
process and does not impact on reliability.

Management regularly reviews and adiusts the estimates and methodologies as improved analysis becomes
available. Changes in these assumptions and methodologies could have a direct impact on the level of provision and
impairment charge recorded in the financial statements.

Refer to Note 3{g} and Note 23(ii) for details of credit impairment provisions.

Nen-credit provisioning

Within the Greup, the Bank holds non-credit related provisions in respect of future obligations such as long service
leave. The Bank offers a long service benefit for all employees that server the Bank for 15 years. An additional
benefit is earned after every 5 yzars of service after the initial 15 years of service. The Bank provides for this liability

© under the assumpticn that the likelihcod that the employee will receive the benefit is propertional to the ratio of the

service that had been achieved over the service period required. All provisions for long service leave are calculated
using actual benefits eamed less benafits taken plus the proprotion of the next benaiit costed at the current cost for
that employee.

COVID-18 impact on credit performance

The Group's approach to incorperating the effect of Covid-19 on our ECL calculations at the reporting date has
changed from 30 June 2022.

At 30 June 2022, the Group considered that loans not individually impaired, that took up COVID-19 reief from Phase
310 7, represented a significant increase in credit risk. (SICR) and these loans were restaged from Stage 1 to Stage
2.

However, at reporting date the Group considers these loans have had sufficient ime to demonstrate their
repayment history such that the Group's normal monitoring and credit grading processes are considered adequate.
Therefore no loans have been restaged at reporting date.
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Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note

Note

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

OTHER JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax assets

The Group has judged, based on current and recent past performance and budget/business plans in place, that there
will be sufficient taxable income in the future to utilise taxable differences that are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future and has therefore recognised a deferred tax asset. Refer to Note 18.

Yield related fees
The group has reviewed all fees and has judged that loan establishment fees are integral to the yield of the product.
These fees have been included as part of the caiculation of the effective interest rate.

Member's valuation of selected fixed assets

Certain fixed assets have been included in the Statement of Financial Pesition based on valuations performed by the:
Members. This is due to difficulties experienced in obtaining information relating to these assets. This treatment is a
departure from IPSAS 17 Property, Plant, and Equipment. The audit report of these financial statements is gualified
in this regard. Refer to Note 14.

Work in progress receivables
Work in progress receivables represent managements best estimate of percentage of completion for capital
projects. Management consider that costs incurred to balance date feirly represent the stage of completion.

Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. When available the Group measures the fair value of an
instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. If there is no quoted price in an active
market, then the Group uses valuation technigues that maximise the use ¢f relevant observable inputs and minimise
the use of unobservable inputs. The best avidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is
normally the transacticn price.

The Group measures fair value using the following hierarchy:

Level 1: inputs that are qucted market prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical Instrumeants,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observed diractly or indirectly, and

Level 3: inputs that are unchservable.

Due ta the nature of financial instruments that the Group holds, the fair value and carrying value of financial
instruments are not materially different.

CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the Group's annual financial
staternents for the year ended 30 June 2022,

4 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At tha date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are no new standards that have been issued which
were not vet effective at balance sheet date and which the Group has not early adopted that have a material impact
on the financial statements.




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 5

Note 6

Note 7

Sundry Income

Cook Islands Investment Corporation

Annual report for the yvear ended 30 June 2023

Parent
(80, June! 30 June

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022
Sundry revenue 19

49
Other expenses
Advertising 15
Elactricity 23
Fees paid to group auditor - audit services 123
Fees paid to group auditor - non audit services -
Fees paid to other auditors - audit services -
Motor vehicle expenses 17
Payment on behalf of Crown 408
Staff training expenses 11
Travel expenses 23
Cther cperating expenses 603
Total Other expenses 1,224
Employee entitlements
Current
Accrued salaries and wages 15
Annual leave 115
Current employee entitlements 130
Mon-current
Long seivice leave accrual -
Non-current employee entitlements -
Total employee entitlements . 130
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year endad 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

Mote 8 Cash and cash equivalents
Parent
0 Junie! 30 June

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022
Cash on hand -
Cash at bank 29
Total cash and cash eguivalents 291
Less Allowange for Doubtful Debt
Net cash and cash equivalents 281
Note 9 Term Deposits
30 June: 30 June
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022: 2022
Less than 12 months 59,706 797
CQwver 12 months 938 -
Total term deposits 80,844 |- 797
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt {162); 0
Net term deposits 60,482 7
Short term deposits are made for varying periods, depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rate.
Note 10  Receivables from exchange transactions
Pargnt
ing: 30 Juna
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022
Current receivables 72
Less: impairment allowance (70}
Total receivables from exchange transactions 2z
As at 30 June 2023, the ageing analysis of current exchange receivables is as follows:
Group
Neither past
due or
In thousands of Newr Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-80 days >60 days
As at 30 June 2022
Total receivables from exchange
Wansactions 5,079 4,835 32 46 166
Neither past
due or
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days >80 days
As at 30 June 2023
Total rec_:ewab\es from exchange 6,652 3.436 503 288 2,295
transactions
Parent
Neither past
due or
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars Total impaired <30 days 30-80 days >80 days
As at 30 June 2022
Total receivables from exchange
transactions 72 45 7
Neither past
due or
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-80 days >B0 days
As at 30 June 2023
lotal re:?ewables trom exchange 216 205 20 ° 102
transactions
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual repert for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 11

Related parties

30 June

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022

Related party receivables - Current

Government of the Cook Islands

Cook Island Property Corporation (N2} Limited
Avaroa Cables Limitad

To Tatou Vai Limited

Cock Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited

Banana Court Company Limited

Ministry of Foreign Affairs And Immigration
Miristry of Finance and Econemic Managament
ClIC Seabed Resources Limited

Total related party receivables

In thousands of New Zealand Doliars 2022

Related party receivables - Non Current

Government of the Cook Islands

Cook Island Property Corporation {(NZ} Limited
Avaroa Cables Limited

Te Tateu Vai Limited

Cook |slends Telecommunication Holdings Limited
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited

Banana Court Company Limited

Ministry of Foreign Affairs And Immigration
Ministry of Finance and Economic Managemeant
CIIC Seabed Resources Limited

Total related party receivahles

The balances are repayable cn demand are unsecured and do not bear interest.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 11 Related parties {continued)

Group Parent
20 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars 2023 2022 2023 2022

Related party payables - Current

Government of the Cook Islands

Telecon Cook Islands

Ministry of Finance and Economic Management
Banana Court Company Limited

Avaroe Cables Limited

Te Mana Uira ¢ Araura Limited

ClIC Seabed Resources Limited

Cook Islands Property Corporation {MZ} Limited -

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation 1,401

Total related party payables - current 1,510
30 June

I thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022

Dividends payable

Government of the Cock !slands
Total dividends payable

The related party balances do not have fixed repayment terms, are unsecured and no interest is payable.

Key Managerment Personnel - Parent

Key management personnel of the Corporation include the Board of Directors and the senior management tsam
being the Chief Executive Officer and General Managers - Crown Enterprise, Asset Development, Asset
Managemant, Land & Legal and Corperate Servics/ CFO.

30 June
2022
Total Number of
remuneration persons
{000's)
Board of Directors 122 5
Senior Management 760 7 727 5]
Kev Management Personnel - Group
30 June
2022
Total Number of
remuneration persons
: g (000's)
Board of Directors 774 50 772 51
Senicr Management 4,775 52 4,189 44
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes 1o the financial statements (continued)

MNote 11

a)

k)

c}

d)

h)

k)

Related parties (continued)

Material related party income and expenditure:

The Group entjties undartake numerous transactions with other Government entities in the normal course of their
business including electricity in Rarotenga and Aitutaki, Port and Airport cherges, banking services, as well as
property rentals. These transactions are not material, are conducted at commercial rates and have therefore not
been disclosed separately.

The Group provides electricity 1o various Government entities outside of the Group through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Te Aponga Uira O Turmnu-te-Varovaro (Te Aponga). Entities within the Group paid $1,044,909 {2022:
$590,000} to Te Apongsa for electricity services which has been eliminated on consolidation, Electricity goods and
services provided 1o related parties are transacted cn normal trading terms.

The Group provides telecommunication services to various Government entities outside of the Group through its
associate, Telecom Cook Islands Limited. Entities within the group paid $670,203 {2022: $419,323) to Telecom

Cook Islands for telecommunication services. Communication services provided to related parties are transacted
on normal trading terms.

Many of the properties owned by Cook Islands Government Property Corporation are tenanted by Ministries of
the Governrent of the Cook Islands, n general, rental income is not received for the use of these assets, as
Government Ministries are not appropriated for this cost.

The property owned by Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ} Limited is tenanted by the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and Imumigration. No rental is charged to the tenant.

The Corporaticn uses the Cook Islands Property Corporation {NZ) Limited bank account te pay for NZ payments
when required. These are charged back to the Corporation through the Intercompany balance.

Government appropriation income was received by the Group of §12,207,000 (2022: $12,420,000).

Capital project liability relates to project Tunding received by CIIC from Cook Islands Government and other
funding agencies for the completion of capital assets. These assets are recognised as Woerk in progress receivable
in the Statement of Financial Position for which on cempletion the asset is to be returned to Crown.

Cook Islands Government Property Corperation made a revenus transfer of $579,000 (2022 $549,000) to the
Corporation in accerdance with Section 31(2) of the Cook Islands Investrment Corperation Act 1998. The transfer
has been recognised as revenue within the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses of the
Corporation.

Equity injections for the Group in 2023 was $5,316,000 {2022: $5,224,000) being assets consisting of $689,830
{2022; $517,000) of capital assets for To Tatou Vai Limited, $50,000 of equity injected for Cook Islands Property
Corporation [NZ) and $4,566,000 of completed buildings and extensions transferred to the Cook |slands
Government Property Corporation.

The parent received $600,000 dividends for the year {2022: $nil) from subsidiaries. The Group received $120,000
tax benefit {2022: $nil} in relation to dividends paid to the parent, Cook islands Investment Corporation, a tax
paying entity.

Included in trade and other payables is an amount due to Ceok Islands Police of $55,073 {2022: $70,987) for motor
vehicle registrations administered by Bank of the Cook Islands on behalf of the Cock Islands Police.
Curing the year the bank earned motor vehicle registration commissions of $263,000 {2022: $254,000).

During the reporting period, the Group received € donated motor vehicles, which has been recognised in the
Staternent of Financial Position as an asset, and as Owner Centributions by way of direct equity injection for
Crown capital expenditure by the Cock Islands Government. The fair value of this funding has been determined 1o
be equivalent to the amounts due in the specific funding arrangesments.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporaticn
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Mote 11 Related parties {continued)

rm}  Bamana Court Company Limited leases land and buildings from Cook Islands Government Property Corporation. The company
paid leasehold commisgsions and lease fees of $7,972 (2022: $2,103) during the current year. The lease is for a period of 30
years from 1 September 1880, For the first 10 vears of term the rental was $100 per annum. For the remaining pericd the
lessee pays to the lessor an amount of 12.6% of the rent or consideration received from subleasing of the Jand after tax.
On 3 December 2020 the lease was renewed for a further 30 years from 1 September 2020. The rental continues to be
calculated and payable at an amount of 12.56% of the rent or consideration received from subleasing of the land after tax.

n Audit fees for Caok Islands Government Property Corporation are borna by the Corporation. Tha Corporation provides
oversight and management for Cock Islands Governmant Property Corporation as the 2 antities are considered to operata as
cne.

Note 12  Banking portfolic investments

The following is a summary of the loans portfolic by industry sector as at 30 June 2023

Group Total Due
within Qver
One Year QOne Year
2022 2022 2022
Agriculture 57 10 ' 47
Fishing 237 41 196
Consumer 7.421 1,272 8,149
Business 20,158 3,458 16,702
Housing 45,553 7,811 37,743
Staff 3,501 800 2,801
Tourism 13,661 2,343 11,318
90,588 15,533 75,056

LESS:

Provision for doubtful loans 7,343

Deferred income 732

Net Portfolio as at 30 June 82,513

Split by:

Current 13,892

Non - current 58,621

82,513

All loans have been made at varying interest rates, terms and securities.
The Group administers lcans totalling $4,389,000: (2022 $5,839,441) on behalf of the Gevernment
of the Cook Islands under the Business Continuity Credit Scheme. These loans distributed under
this scheme are not legal assets of the Group and therefore are not recognised on the Group's
Staternent of Financial Positicn.
The following significant individual counter-party exposuras existed at balancea date:

Group 2022

in thousands of New Zealand [

#

Percent of Equity Counter Loan Percentage
Range Parties Balance of Bank's Equity
5-10% 4 3,719 20.88%
+10% 4 9,136 51.53%
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 12  Banking portfolio investments [continued)

Provision for Losses on Banking Portfolio Investments

Group

30 June
I thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022
The total charge of provisions was made up as follows:

PROVISIONS FOR DCUBTFUL LOANS

Opening balance 6,710
Opening transfer from Non-performing Interest -
Movement in provision as a result of IFRS 8 -
Bad debts written out of provisiens (32)
Allowance for hardship -
Provisions for doubtful loans B65
Balance at end 7.343
Net increase/{decrease) in provision for doubtfui
loans 533

Mote 13 Inventories

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Trading stock

Spare parts 138 -
Fuels 2,645 -
Other 777 -

Total inventories 8,633 :

Accounting policy:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is determined on a
weightad average basis, which is determined using the first-in-first-out principle. The cost of inventories includes
expenditure Incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs Incurred bringing them
to their existing location and condition.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 14 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars

PARENT

Furired Mot o
Cost
At 1 July 2021 415 224 639
Additions 51 - 51
Disposals - - -
Transfers/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2022 466 224 690
Additions 19 56 75
Disposals kN (55) {56)
Transfersfadjustments - - -
At 30 June 2023 434 225 709
Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 July 2021 {318) (186) {504)
Disposals - - -
Depreciation {43) (18) {61
Impairment - - -
Transfersfadjustments - - -
At 30 June 2022 {361) (204) {565)
Disposals 1 55 56
Depreciation (41) {18) (59)
[rnpairment - - -
Transfers/adjustrnents - - -
At 30 June 2023 (401) (167} {568)
Net Book Values
At 1 July 2021 97 38 135
At 30 June 2022 105 20 125
At 30 June 2023 83 58 141
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

14 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Determination of Cost:

Buildings are measured at cost. Cost is based on histerical costs or deemed cost based on previous valuations as detailed below:

Rental houses were valued at $1.8 million {2022: $1.8million) by John McElhinney of Rarotonga, a registered valuer, in May 1999. The
valuation includes buildings only and no attempt has besn made to place a valuation on the land. This Mey 1999 valuation is the
deemed cost applied for these rental houses.

The Rarctonga Hespital Administration Block is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The Court House, Police Headquarters and Multi Sports Complex are recorded at the value nominated by the Ministry of Flnance and
Economic Management for the Cook Islands being the cost of construction.

All other Cook Islands Govarnment Property Corporation buildings are stated at deemad cost being valuations performed by members
and initially recorded in the 1996/97 statutory accounts for the Government of the Cook Islands less accumulated depreciation.

The Mulgrave Street property in Wellington owned by Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited was valued by Darroch Limited in
August 2010, for insurance purposes providing depreclated replacement cost of $802,000. An earlier vajuation by DTZ New Zesland in
October 2008 placed a market value of $1,500,000 for land and buildings in Mulgrave Street. This property is held at costin the financial
staternents.

Subsequent to 30 June 2021, Cook Islands Investment Corporation on behalf of Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ} Limited, re-
engaged Darroch Limited to provide an updated valuation report for the insurance renewal purposes for the property. On the éth of
September the depreciated replacement cost is $1,087,000 with a reinstatement estimate of $2,301,000.

The building owned by Bank of the Cook Islands Limited is valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. This building was valued at
$1,900,000 by Jones Lang LaSelle Hotels Limited in May 2014, The remaining term of the BC| House lease is b years.

Leased Land
Cock Islands Government Property Corporation leased land is stated at deermed cost being the initial value recorded in the 1996/97
statutory accounts for the Government of the Cook Islands less depreciation where applicable.

Restrictions on Disposals
Fixed assets held by Cook Islands Gevernment Property Corporation and its subsidiaries cannot be disposed of without prior consent of
Cabinet.

Owriershio and completeness of assets

These assets disclosed in these financial statements may not be a complete presentation of all assets falling under the ownership and
Jor control of the Corperation and Group. The assets presented are included on the basis of the current understanding of the Members
at the time the financlal statements were prepared.

Transfer of assets from Crown owned entities
These assets are recorded at the value nominated by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management for the Cook Islands or
relevant Crown owned entity based on the cost of construction and are recognised directly in equity as a contribution from owner.

Members' valuation of selected fixed assets

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this note, fixed assets have been included in the Staternent of Financial Position based on valuations
performed by the Mambers. As in prior years, historical fixed assets have been recorded in the financial statements at nil value. Thisis
due to difficulties experienced in obtaining information relating to these assets, due to less of historical accounting records.

This treatment is a departure from iPSAS 17 Property, plant and equipment which notes an appraisal of an asset is normally undertaken
by a member of the valuation profession, who holds a recognised and relevant professional gualification. The audit report of these
financial statements is gualified in this regard.

Asset valuation reserve

On 1 Cctober 2020 a valuation was performed by Alexander Napa Consultancy cver Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited's buildings and
transformer shelter assets. The total valuation was $1,702,000. The values have been applied at 30 June 2020. As a result of the
valuation, a revaluation reserve of $936,000 has been recognised pertaining to an uplift in existing asset values, as well as an equity
injection of $430,000 to record building and shelter assets not previously recognised by the Company.

Impairment

Te Mana Uira O Araura Limited

In 2022 an impairment of $84,7485 was reccgnised pertaining to Generator 2 that has broken down, is no lenger in use and the Company
has no intention to restore the asset.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 15

Note 16

Intangible Assets

GROUP
in thousands of New Zealand Doflars
Carrying

Cost Arnount
At 1 July 2021 6,498
Additions 0
Transfar 179
At 30 June 2022 6,677
Additions 4,294
Disposals (456)

Transfer
e 2023°

{95)

Amortisation and impairment

At 1 July 2021 4,547
Amortisation for the year 397
At 30 June 2022 4,944
Transfer (74)
Disposals {443)
Amartisation for the year 1,307

Work in progress

At 1 July 2022
Additions

At 30 June 2023
Amortisation for the year

..O(OO(Q

2023

Net book values

At 30 June 2022

A0 une 2023

Intangible assets include cests incurred in acquiring and building software and computer systems
{software}. Software is amortised using the straight line method over its expected useful life.

Investment property

Group
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Opening balance 1 July
Additions / (Disposals)
Transfers

Depraciation

30 June 30 June

Closing balance at 30 June

2023 2022
5,578 5,824
190 -
47 -
(294) {246)
5,521 5,678

Investment property includes buildings and premises owned by the Airport Authority, Ports Authority, and
Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited. Investment property is carried at cost.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 17 Trade and other payables

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June 30 June
2022 2022
Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions
Trade creditors 1,365 86
Interest accrual 669 -
Provisions 349 -
Other payables and accruals 4,716 416
Total trade and other payables from
7,089 502

exchange transactions

Trade creditors and other accruals are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.

Trade and other payables from non-
exchange transactions

Value addad tax 196 -

Total trade and other payables from non-
exchange transactions 196 -
Total trade and other payables 7.285 502

Provisions

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June 30 June
2022 2022
Opening land lease provisicn 415 -
Additional provision made in the period (486) -
Provision utlised in the period 420 -
Closing land lease provision 349 -
Opening other provision - -
Additional provision made in the period - -
Closing other provision - -
Total Provision 345 -

Included in Provisions is land lease provision related to outstanding rent reviews and lease payments to
landowners. The Group has estimated the provision based on the current status of negotiations with
iandowners and consideration of recent renewals and valuations performed by registered valuers across
the Cook Islands' property market.

Lease negotiations are ongoing. Actual amounts owing are determined once lease agreements are signed.
The lease provision is non-interast bearing.
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Notes to the tinancial statements {(continued)

Note 18 Taxes
Parent

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022

Income tax receivable

Income tax receivable (payable) off 7 July
Reclassified from / (to) tax payable
Reclassified from future incoms tax benefit
Income tax on current year surplus

Income tax benefit on dividends paid
Income tax paid

Income tax receivable 30 June

Future Income Tax Benefit

Future Income Tax Benefit off 1 July
Reclassified from / (to) deferred tax asset

Tax lossses recognised in current year surplus
Income tax benefit on dividend paid

Future Income Tax Benefit

574
132
331

1,037 |

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset ¢ff 1 July

Reclassified from / (to} future income tax benefit
Defarred tax on current year surplus

Deferred tax asset 30 June

2,008
(50)
(21

1,907

Income tax payable

Income tax payable cff 1 July

Reclassified to tax receivable

Income tax on current year dividend paid
Income tax paid

Tax benefit on dividends paid

Reclass from prior vear adjustment
Reclassified to FITB

Adjustment for RMD advice on FX treatment
Income tax payable 30 June

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability off 1 July
Deferred tax on current year surplus
Reclass from prior year adjustment
Reclassified to deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability 30 June

341
(23)
(38)
{50)

230 .

Tax Losses

Opening tax losses
UHilisation of tax losses
Addition of tax losses
Closing tax losses 30 June

2,332

967
3,299
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Note 18 Taxes (continued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Cook Islands investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Parent

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2022
Surplus before taxation for the year i {8,336) {912)
{Surplus)/deficit for tax exempt entities 2097 2,386 -
Equity accounted earnings from associate St 98 385~ -
Unrealised gains(loss) of FX
Profit excluding tax (5,585} (912)
Prima facie taxation at 20% {1,117) = (182)
Difference for tax at other rates (NZ 30%) S : -
Tax effect of non-assessable income 497 -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 630 -
Tax effect on prior period adjustmenis {399) - : -
Tax on dividend distributed to Government by tax exempt *
entity - -
Taxable income not recognised in accounts 35 -
Tax impact cn Govt Grants accounting under 1AS 20 - -
Tax losses not recognised 175 .
Additional tax losses accumulated 193w -
Income tax expense {(592) v 18 {182)
Income tax expense is represented by:

Current (436} (182)

Defarred (1566} -

(592) . (182)

Income tax losses carried forward:

Individual entities within the group have combined carried forward tax losses of $3,534,000 (2022: $3,299,000).
These tax losses are unable to be offset and can only be used by the individual companies. These losses have not

been recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

These tax losses have no expiry date provided there is 40% continuity in ownership and the taxation laws in relation

to these do not change.

Within the group, Cook Islands Government Property Corporaticn is exempt from taxation under the Income Tax Act

1997.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 19 Investment in shares
The reconciliation of non-current investments is as follows:

Parent

iarrvlng Fair Value
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars mount

Finaneial instruments at cost

Investment in Shares
Opening balance at 1 July 2021
Additional investments made
Investments sold
At 30 June 2022
Additicnal investments made
Investments sold

At 30 June 2023

There have been no changes to investments in shares during the 2023 pariod.
Shares held at year end relate to the Group’s investment in Asian Development Bank {ADB) and Hawailan Alrlines. The
shares are held within the Group by Cook Islands Government Property Corporation and Airport Authority (respactively).

Mote 20 (a) Investment in Associates
These financial statements include the financial statements of the Group and the controllad entities listed in the following
table:

Associate entities are those in which the Corporation has a substantial sharehelding and in whose commercial and financial
policy decisions it participates but does not have any controlling interest.

Telecorn Cook Islands Limited is incorporated in the Cook Islands and provides telecommunication services to the Cook
Islands. The Group’s interest in Telecom Cook Islands Limited is held by Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings
Limited. During 2023 Telecorm Cook Islands Limited changed its balance date from 31 December to 31 March.

Cobalt Seabed Resources Limited (formerly CIIC Seabed Resources Limited) was established during the 2018 period. The
principal activity of Cobalt Seabed Resources Limited is the exploration, classification, exploitation, marketing and selling of
polymetallic nedules within the Cook Islands Exclusive Economic Zone and the Cock Islands assigned area within the
Clarjon Clipperton Zone, The Company is 50% owned by the Cook Islands Investment Corporation and 50% by GSR-CI
Limited. The ultimate Parent Cornpany of GSR-Ci Limited is Globeal Sea Mineral Resources NV, a Company incorporated and
registered in Belgium.

Ownershi Total Assets Total Total Income Total
' Liabilities Profit/(loss)
$000's $000's $000's $000's
40% 34,381 4,794 22,592 {1,342)
50% 3,619 5,384 - {B21)
Telecom Cock Islands Limited {15 months
o 30/06/2023 40% 33,469 3,79 36,329 1,290
Cobalt Seabed Resources Limited (12 o
months 1o 31/12/22) audited 50% 3,643 8,001 - {594)

51

 PAROFZ
a3

Idantification
Purposa

*




Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
Nate 20 ({a) Investment in Associates {continued)

Investment in associates - Group

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2023 2022
. Cobalt Seabed Total Telecom Cook Gobalt Total
Telecom Coak Seabed
L Resourcas Islands
Islands Limited o . Resources
Limited Limited -
Limited

Equity accounted investee .

Opening balance at 1 July 11,987 - 11,967 12,332 - 12,332
Investment at cost - - - - - -
Share of profitflloss) 504 - 504 (366) - (365)
Dividend raceived {500} - (600} - - 0
Balance at 30 June 11,871 - 11,871 11,967 - 11,967

Note 20 (b} Investment in Subsidiaries

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited {TMU) (formerly Altutaki Power Supply Limited ) is a company registered in the Cock Islands. TMU wes
incorporated on 30 June 2017,
The share capital of the Company is $1,000 divided into 1,000 ordinary shares of $1 each.

The Company's shareholders are:
- Cook Islands Government Property Corporation — 989 shares
- Cook Islands investment Corporation — 1 share

To Tatou Vai Authority {TTV) is an Authority under the To Tatou Val Act 2021. Prior to this, TTV was a company registered in the Cook Islands and
was incorporated on the 25th of August 2017,

The share capital of the Authority is $100,000 dividad into 100,000 ordinary shares of $1 each.
The Authority's shareholders are:

- Cook Islands Government Property Corporation — 50,000 shares

- Cook lslands Investment Corporation — 50,000 shares

Avarca Cables Limited (ACL) is a company registered in the Cook Islands. ACL was incorporated on the 24th of March 2017.
The share capital of the Company is $1,000 divided intc 1,000 ordinary shares of $1 each.

The Company’s sharehelders are:
- Cook Islands Government Property Corperaticn — 500 shares
- Cook Islands Investment Corporation —500 share

It has been determined that Cock Islands Investment Corporation, the Parent, has control over these entities — TMU, TTV, and ACL and as such
have been consolidated directly into these Group financial statements.

Investment in Subsidiaries Group ) ~ Parent
30 30 June June. 30 June
2022 0 2022
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limitad - 426
To Tatou Vai Limited - 1
Avaroa Cables Limited - 100
Tofal Investment in Subsidiaries - 527
Note 21 Banking customer deposits - Group
2023 2022
Total Due within Over one year Total Due within Cver one
one year one year  year
in thousands of New Zealand Doflars
Call deposits 79,179 79,179 - 71,844 71,844 -
Client term deposits 38,166 37,110 1,056 40,701 36,844 8&7
TOTAL 117,345 116,289 1,056 112,545 111,688 857

The Parent does not have banking customer deposits.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Mote 22 Borrowings

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Group

30 June. 30 June
28 2022

Current portion :
ADB Ports Authority 0
Crown - Ports Authority 0
ADB - Avaroa Cable Limited 500
500

Non current portion DR P
ADB - Ports Authority ST 6,980 19,616
Crown - Perts Authority BT ¥ 0
ADB - Avaroa Cable Limited 1o 22:22,620 19,388
; 42,438 38,903

There are ne borrowings in the Par

Ports Authority Borrowings

The Asian Developrnent Bank {(ADB) approved two loans (L2472-CO0 and L2473-CQO0Q) on 20 Nevember 2008 for the funding of the
Avatiu Port Development Project. The ADB signed the loan agreements for these two loans with the Government of the Cook Islands
on B May 2009 and the Government on-lent to the Ports Authority by way of a subsidiary loan agresment signed on 317 July 2008. ADB
further approved and signed a supplementary loan (L2733-CO0) to loans L2472-CO0 and L2473-CQ0 on 24 March 2011 and 30
December 2011 respectively with the Government of the Cook Islands as part of the funding of the Avatiu Port Development Project.
The Governrment on provides the funds to Ports Authority by effect of the subsidiary loan agreement signed on 21 July 2009.

The borrowings were drawn down through the Cook Islands Government. The Authority received concessionary interast rates for the
three loans by ADB and these rates are the same as in the subsidiary loan agreements between Governrnent and the Authority,

ADB L2472

This loan is for a period of 20 vears plus a b year grace period with repayments commencing on 15 May 2014, This concessionary loan
was fully drawn by May 2013, The full draw down was USD$8,419,792. Fram May 2013, this loan was transferred to NZD with & fixed
interest rate of 5.77%.

ADBL2473

The lcan is fixed for a period of 24 years plus an 8 year grace period with equal repayments commencing on 15 May 2017, This
concessionary loan was fully drawn by February 2014. The full draw down was SBR 4,519,038, The ncminal interest rate for Loan 2473
is 1% per annuim for the 8 vear grace period and 1.5% thereafter.

The Authority is responsible for any changes in the amounts payable arising due to exchange rate fluctuations. Accordingly, all
exchange rate risks are carried by the Authority. The borrowings are recorded in NZD at the exchange rate at the date of the drawdown
and are restated using the closing rate at balance date. Any changes in exchange rate fluctuations are recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenus and Expenses,

ADB L2739

Loan 2739 is supplementary to L2473 and L2472 for USD $4.7 million and is fixed for a period of 20 vears plus a b year interest grace
period with repayments commencing on 15 May 2016, The full draw down was US$4,428,273 by May 2013 and a further NZ$32,425
was drawn on January 2014 after the loan was converted to NZD currency.

Loan 2472 and Loan 2739 were converted to NZD on 15 May 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.77% and an average floating interest
rate of 2.00% (2021: 2.84%} for the respective loans.

Ports Authority Borrowings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

L2472 L2473 L2739 Total
As at 1 July 2022 7,887 4,775 4,458 17,120
Payment towards Loan Interest {449) {73) {194} {716)
Payment towards Loan Principle - {397) (22) 247} {666)
Interest accrued during the year 455 73 307 835
Maovernent in foreign exchange 0 (260) 0 (260}
As at 30 June 2023 7,496 4,493 4,324 16,313
Current Liability 431 414 188 1,033
Non-current Liability 7,065 4,079 4,136 15,280

During the year, the Authority continued to receive concessionary deferral ef loan repayments under the subsidiary agreement {i.e. with
MFEM) with principal and interest payments deferred since May 2020.During this time, MFEM continued to meet repayments undsr
the head agreement with ADB. Recommencement of loan repayments interest and principle by the Authority began in November 2023.
The payments made by MFEM are to be repaid by tha Autherity by the end of the ADB loan term. This portion of the borrowing is
recognised sperately in 'Cook Islands Government Borrowings'.
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Note 22 Borrowings {continued)

Cook Islands Government Loan
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

30.June

2022

As at 1 July 2,297
Payments made during the year 1,263
As at 30 June 2023 3,560
Current Liahility -
Total borrowings 3,560

Avaroa Cable Limited Borrowings

The Government of the Cook stands has entered into a loan agreement with the Asian Develocprment Bank for USD $15 million for the
purpose of Cook Island’s share of the Manatua Cable System including constructicn of the cable and additional spurs to Rarotonga and
Aitutakl, construction of landing stations and project management sugport. In line with the ADB loan agreement, the Cook Islands
Government has entered into a subsidiary loan agreement with Avaroa Cable Limitad {ACL) to retend these funds to complete the
project. The total loan amount drawn down at balance date is USD $12,366,000 (2022; USD$12,356,000)

Interest and commitment charges accrued as at balance date is USD $185,000 (2022 USD$48,000)

The terms of this loan agreement include interest and other charges payable semi-annually on 1 Aprii and 1 October each year, The
rates from 1 Qctober 2021 are interest 0.657% plus a PRM of C.10% and a SFL rate of 0.02%. A commitment charga on the full
amount of the loan less amounts withdrawn from time is charged at 0.15% per annum. Principle repayments commenced from 1 April
2023 with biannual payments of 2.5% of the lcan balance for a period of 10 years until 1 October 2042.

Avaroa Cable Limited Borrowings
fn thousands of New Zealand Pofla(_s_ o

30 June

2022

Current portion 1,223 500
Non current portion L 22 620 19,388
Total borrowings N 23,843 19,888

Avaroa Cable Limited -Loan Covenant Breaches

- Marine Protection Legislation

During the financial year the Cook Islands Government were in breach of & loan covenant under their lending arrangements with the
executive Asian order Development is submitted Bank. to The Ceck covenant I1slands’ requires Parliament that of within draft 12
legislation months to of the ensure effective adequate date of protection lending, of an the enactmeant Manatua of Cablean system in
Cook Islands' waters. This was outstanding at balance date. The carrying amount of the lending at balance date is $23,842,806.

This breach of covenant in the Cook Islands Government's loan agreement with the Asia Development Bank has conseguential impacts
to the subsidiary agreement with the ACL. To mitigate the impact of the Asian Development Bank acting on this breach and calling up
the loan proceeds at year end, the Cook Islands Government have provided a waiver prior to balance date. This waiver confirms the loan
proceads under the subsidiary agreement will not be called upon if the Asian Development Bank called up the loan proceeds under its
lending arrangements with the Cook Islands Govaernment, and the Cook Isfands Government will provide the balance of theundrawn
portion of teh $15,000,000 USD lent under the subsidiary loan agreement which was yet to be drawn down by ACL at yeer end, in
order for ACL to bring the Cock Islands’ portion of the Manatua Cable Project to completion. The Group therafore consider the
preparation of financial statements on a going concern basis to be appropriate.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management
Expasure to currency, interest rate, liguidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of the Group's operations. This
note presents information about the Group's exposure 1o each of the above risks, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these financial staterments.
Fair values

Set out below are the carrying ameunts by class of the Group's financial instruments

Financial assets Group Parent
i 30June - 30 June
2022 2022

in thousands of New Zealand Doflars
Cash and cash equivalents 23,199 291
Term deposits 60,482 791
Trade and other receivables 8,684 695
Banking peortfclic investments 82,513 -
Taxation receivable 1,066+ 672
Related party receivables 1,713 275

175,657 93 ; 2,724

All financial assets held by the group are classified and measure at amortised cost. Due to the nature and term of the
financial assets that the Group halds, the fair value and carrying value of financial assets is not materially different.

Financial liabilities Parent
30 June 30 June
2022 2022
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Trade and other payables 8,455 550
Ernployee entitlernents 797 . 130
Banking customer deposits 112,625 -
Income tax payable 277 -
Related party payables 766 1,510
Bank loan 39,403 -
Dividends payable -
2,190

Due to the nature and term of the financial liabilities that the Group holds, the fair value and carrying value of financial
liabilities is not materially different.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management {eontinued)

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liguidation. The following
methods and assumptions were used toc astimate the fair values:

Cash and short-term deposits, Trade recaivables, trade payablas and other current liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely dua to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Long-tarm fixed rate and variable rate receivables/borrowings are evalusted by the Group hased on parameters such as
interest rates, specific country risk factors and individual creditworthiness of the custorner and the risk characteristics
of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the incurred losses of these
receivables and market related interest rates. As at 30 June 2023 and 2022 respectively, the carrying amounts of such
raceivabies, net of allowancas are not materially different from their calculatad fair values.

The fair value of other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cashflows using rates currently available for
debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if customers or counterparties to financial instruments fail to meet
their contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June was:

Group Parent

30 June 30 June
2022 2022
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Cash and cash equivalents 21,805 291
Term deposits 50,482 791
Trade and other receivables 6,684 695
Banking portfolio investments 82,513 -
Taxation receivable 1,066 672
Related party receivables 1,713 275
Maximum exposure to credit risk 174,363 2,724

In the normal course of business, the Group incurs credit risk from trade debtors, cash and cash equivalents and term
depasits held with other financial institutions and loans receivable from customers.

The Group astablishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of anticipated losses in respect of
receivables.

Credit risk for the Group arises principally from the Bank of the Cook Islands Limited's loans to customers.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23

{i}

Finangcial Instruments - financial risk management {continued}

Credit risk (continued)

Bank management monitor cradit risk through credit policies and security ratio limits. All loans are reviewed annually to
ensure that loans are still operating under loan contracted conditions. However, problem lcans are reviewed on a
sharter timefrarne, either 3 months or 8 months, in addition to annual reviews, Anomalies are reported to the Manager
Credit who will assign follow up tasks for the cradit officars. Loan payment arrears are reviewed monthly to ensure
client arrears are addressed. The Bank helds monthly Credit Management Committee meetings to monticr accounts,
arraars and follow ups. Loans that become a concern are followed up by the Asset Management Unit and reparted
monthly to the board of Directors. The exposure is monitored on an on-geing basis and in monthy reports to
Management and the Board of Directors.

Analysis of Credit Quality
Maxirmum exposure to credit risk from bank lending activities within the Group is set out below:

Business WMortgage Personal Total Total
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars ) 2022
Maximum exposure to credit risk
Gross carrying amount 90,588
Loans with renegotiated terms
Gross carrying amount 54,815
54,816
Neither past due nor impaired
Gross cairying amount 78,729
Less restaged loans not in arrears® (43,376)
35,353
Past due but not impaired {days in arrears)
0-30 2,625
31-80 -
51-80 49
S0+ days 236
2,810
Individually impaired
Balance as at 1 July 9,660
Additions 2,571
Loan repayments {1,318)
Amounts written off {(32)
Transferred out {1,420)
Balance as at 30 June 9,361

* Rastaged loans not in arrears reprasents loans that are currently not in arrears but have been restaged from "Pass’ to
"Special Mention® for the purpose of calculating the collective grovision. Thase loans, although performing, took ug 1 or
mare COVID-19 Relief packages provided by the Bank during the period 1 October 2020 and 31 March 2022 {Phase 3
to 7) and therefore the Bank considered thase loans to carry a higher level of inherent credit risk (Refer accounting
policy 3 Critical estimates and judgements) for additional information). The collective provision asscciated with the
restaged loans as at 30 Juns 2022 was $648k.

Neo rastaging of loans was undartaken at 30 June 2023 as sufficient time had passed for borrowers to demonstrate
repaying history.
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Note 23

0]

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Analysis of Credit Quality (continued)

Impaired loans

The Group regards a loan as impaired in the following circumstances.

There is objective evidence that the credit risk has increased significantly impacting the future estimated cash flows
from the asset.

A retall loan is overdue for 9C days or more.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually considerad to be impaired
uniess there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no
other indicaters of impairment.

Provisicn is made for specific loans where recovery is considered doubtful or they have become non-performing.
Praovision is made in accordance with IPSAS 41 as described in Note 3(g).

A management overlay at year end 30 June 2023 was made to reflect the economic uncertainty that management
considered was not reflected in the forecast macro data. The overlay increased the collective provision by $450,000
(2022; $150,000.).

Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired are those for which contractual interest or principal payments
are past due but the bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security or collateral
available and / or the stage of coliation of amounts cwed to the bank.

Loans with restructured terms and the Group's forbearance policy

Restructured loans are impaired assets for which the terms have been changed to grant the counterparty a concessicn
that would not otherwise have been available, due to the counterparty’s difficulty in complying with the original terms,
and where the vield on the asset following restructuring is still above the Bank’s cost of funds.

The bank restructures loans to customers in financial difficulties {refarred to as ‘forbearance activities’) to maximise
cotlection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Group's forbearance policy, loan forbearance is
granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is
evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is
expected to be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the
terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy, The bank's Compliance
Committee regularly reviews reports of forbearance activities. i

For the purposes of disclosures in these financial statemants, “loans with restructured terms’ are defined as loans that
have been restructured due to & deterioration In the borrower’s financial position, for which the Bank has made
concessions by agreeing te terms and conditions that are more favourable for the borrower than the Group had
providad initially and that it would not ctherwise consider. A loan continues to be presented as part of loans with

restructured terms until maturitv. earlier repavment or until it is written off.
Irrespective of whether loans with restructured terms have been derecognised or not, they remain disclosed as

impaired until there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant reduction in the risk of non-payment of future
cash flows and there are not other indicators of impairment.

Security
Security is reqguired in respect of most lending. There are various securities which the bank holds. These include but are
not imited to mortgages over leases, personal and company guarantees and Instruments by way of Security.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23

Financial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

Credit risk {continued)
Impairment Allowance

Businass

Balance at baginning of Pariod - 1 July

Chanpes to opaning balance dus to tranafer between stages:
Callsctive Provision - New

Collactive Provision - Stage 1

Collactive Pravision - Stage 2

Collactive Provislon - Stage3

Specific Individual Provision - Stage2

Charge to staternant of comprahensive income In ourrent year
8ad Dabis writen-off

Balance as at 30 June

Mortgage

Balance at beginning of Patiod - 1 July

Changes to ogening balance due to transfer between stages:
Callzctive Provislen - New

Collactive Provision - Stage 1

Callzetive Provisien - Stage 2

Collactive Provision - Stage3

Speeffic Indvidual Provigion - Stagad

Charge 1o statament of comprahensiva incorme In current year
Bsd Debis writen—off

Balance as at 30 Jure

Persanal

Balance at baginning of Pariod - 1 July

Changes to opening balance dus 1o transfsr betywesn stagses;
Collective Provision - New

Collactive Previslon - Stage 1

Collactive Provision - Staga 2

Callactive Provision - Staged

Specific Individus| Provision - Stage3

Charge to ststement of comprehansive income In current year
Bad Debts wiiten-off

Balanca as at 30 June

Total

B3lance at baginning of Period - 1 July

Changes to opening balance dusa to transfer benwesn stages:
Collsctive Provision - Neaw

Collactiva Provision - Stage 1

Collsctive Pravislon - Stage 2

Collactive Provislon - Staged

Spacific Individual Provision - Stage3

Charge to statament of comprahensive income In eurrent year
Bad Dabts writan-off

Balance as at 30 June

Cook Islands Investment Corperation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023

30 June 2022
Spacific
c Collacti o i
Provision  Provision  Provision  Provision Total

Stagal Staga 2 Stage 2 Stane 2

79 608 144 2,909 4,639

1 1582 164

an 111} 117 bg8 bz4

- - - {27 4]

9 397 414 4470 5,289
Specific
Callagti Eollecti e Individual

Provision  Provision  Provisior  Provision Total

Stage1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Staga 3

114 339 584 878 1,715
5 ]
188) 142} 218 "1} 79
31 297 8032 667 1788
Spacific
Collective € i [+ i ivi

Provision Provision  Provision  Provision  Total

Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 3

196 52 3 35 357
4 k] 7
7 - - 7 -

1o 1417 45 84 103}

. - {5 5}

18 11 122 106 255

Specﬁirc
e . o .

Provision Pyovision  Provisfon Provision  Total

Stagal Stage 2 Staga 2 Stage 3

389 esg &0 4621 6,709
10 - 165 - 166
7 - - "
349} 1194 3a3 &8l 501
- - - 133 a3
57 702 1,338 5,242 7,843
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23 Financial Instruments - finaneial risk management {continued}
Credit risk (continued)
{iii) Significant concentrations of credit risk

Cock Islands Investment Cerporation
Annual report for the year ended 20 June 2023

Concentrations of cradit risk exist if a number of counterparties are engaged in similar activities and have similar economic
characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations te be similarly affected by changes in economic

or other conditions.

The Group monjtors concentrations of credit risk by location, institution and sector.

Parent
30 June June™ 30 June
2022 2022

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Concentration by Location
New Zealand financial institutions 40,370 -
New Zealand other institutions 1,736 -
Australia financial institutions 3 -
Rarotenga financial institutions 40,271 1,082
Rarotonga - lending 69,575 -
Quter islands - lending 13,253 -
Rarotonga - Related parties 1,713 275
Qther 7,134 1,422

174,055 2,780
Concentration by Counterparty

Credit rating

Australia New Zealand Bank AA- , b3
Bank of South Pacific B+ 17,180 158
Kiwi Bank AA- 13,5697 -
Bank of New Zealand Al 6,099 -
Westpac Banking Carporation AA- b -
Barzpay BB- 1,736 -
National Australia Bank Group AA- 3 -
Bank of the Cook Islands N/A - 871
Loans to customers N/A 82,828 -
Related parties N/A 1,713 275
Other N/A 7,134 1,422
Total 174,055 i 2,780
Concentration by Sector
Banks 80,642 1,082
Other institutions 1,736 -
Housing 43,023 -
Personal 7,166 -
Business 32,641 -
Related parties 1,713 2756
Other 140 7,134 : 1,422
Total 82672 174,085 . T 2,780
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23

Financial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial coligations as and when thay fall
due. The Group evaluates its liquidity requirements on an on-going basis. In general, the Group generates sufficient
cash flows from cperating activities to meet its obligations arising from its financial liakilties.

Within the Group, liquidity risk is most prevalent in the banking operations.

The Bank of the Cook Islands Board sets the Bank's strategy for managing liuidity risk and has delegated responsibility
for oversight of the liquidity policy to the Assets and Liakilities Committes.

The Finance and Customer Service & Marketing departments review the liguidity position on a daily basis and report
any exceptions and liquidity issues to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities as
they fall due under both normal and stressed cenditions without unacesptable losses or damage to the Bank's
reputation. The key slements of the Bank’s strategy are as follows:

daily monitoring of cash levels held for client withdrawals,

daily menitoring of cash held in other financial institutions on call and on term deposit,

weekly liquidity regorting to mansgernent taking into consideration incorning and outgoing cash flows and estimates
commitrnents for the week,

monthly discussions in the Assats and Liabilities Committee meeting and at Board level.

The maturity of individual financial assets and liabifities are detailed in the notes throughout these financial statements.

In addtion, the Government of the Cook Island has provided a letter of support to both the Bank and the Group
confirming it will provide financia! assistance to the Bank and Group where necessary to continue its operations as a
going concern and will continue to do so for at least 12 months from the date audit clearance Is provided for the 30
June 2023 financial statements.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points {op) in interest ratas at the reporting date would heve increased (dacreased) the profit or
loss by amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all cther variakles remain constant. The analysis is
perforrned on the same basis for 2023.

Group PARENT

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June
2022

Interest bearing Financial assets 1,082

Interest bearing Financial liakilities -

Net exposure 1,082

{n
11

100bp increase effect on profit
100bp decrease effect on profit

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to movements in exchange
rates. The Group does not hold any material foreign currency assets or liabilities and therefore there is minimal
currency risk.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The following financial instruments are sensitive to changes in interest rates: loans, term deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and customer deposits. Loans to customers and Customer deposits are at floating interest rates which are
reviewed on a quartarly basis to ensure they are kept in line with market interest rate movements. An immaterial portion of
loans have a fixed interest rate for the term of the lean. The cash on hand and short term cash deposits earn interest at
normal floating commercial rates.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

Interest Rate Repricing Schedule (continued}

Group
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Weighted average Carrying 0to 12 1-5 =5 Non
interest rate Amcunt months years years sensitive
Balance as at 30 June 2022
Financial Assets
Cash on hand N/A 1,294 - - - 1,294
Cash at bank 0.40% 21,905 71,906 - - -
Term Deposits 1.58% 60,482 59,544 938 - -
Trade and other sundry receivab N/A 6,684 - - - 6,684
Related party receivables N/A 1,713 - - - 1,713
Taxation receivable N/A 1,066 - - 1,066
Banking portfolio investments 8.01% 82,513 82,513 - - -
Total Financial Assets 175,657 163,962 838 - 10,756
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables N/A 8,485 - - - 8,465
Employes entitlements N/A 757 - - - 797
Banking customer deposits 1.48% 112,526 111,688 867 - -
Income tax payable N/A 277 - - - 277
Related party payables N/A 766 - - - 766
Bank loan 5.88% 39,403 500 - 38,903 -
Dividends payable N/A - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 162,223 112,168 857 38,903 10,295
Interest Rate Gap 13,434 51,794 a1 {38,903} 461
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Interest Rate Repricing Schedule (continued}

Parent
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Weighted average  Carrying 0to12 1-5 »5 Non

interest rate Amount months years years sensitive

Balance as at 30 June 2022
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.40% 291 291 - - -
Term Deposits 1.58% 791 791 - - -
Trade and other sundry receivab N/A 895 - - - 696
Taxation receivable N/A §72 - - - 672
Related party receivables N/A 275 - - - 278
Total Financial Assets 2,724 1,082 - - 1,642
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables N/A 580 - - - 550
Ermnployee entitlements M/A 130 - - - 130
Related party payables N/A 1,510 - - - 1,510
Dividends payable N/A - ~ - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 2,190 . - - - 2,180
Interast Rate Gap 534 1,082 - - {548)

Capital management

The primary objective of managing the Group's capital is to ensure that there is sufficient cash available to support the
Group's funding requirements, including capital expenditure, to ensure that the Group remains finangially sound. The
Group's capital includes Capital Contributions and Reserves. Within the Group, Bank of the Cock Islands Limited must meet
capital adequacy requirements required by Cook Islands Banking regulations.

Bank of the Cook Islands Limited’s policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to susiain the future
develeprent of the banking business.

The Bank’s regulatory capital comprises two tiers:

= Tier One Capital which includes issued and fully paid shares and retained earnings less intangible assets. This must be
at least 5% of Risk Weighted Assets.
» Total Capital which inciudes all other capital must be at least 10% of Risk weighted assets.

At balance date the bank had the following:

30 June
2022

% of Risk Weighted Assets
Tier One Capital 20.18%
Total Capital 21.43%

The Bank cemplied with all externally imposed capital reguirements.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note

24

Commitments and contingencies

Capital Commitments
The Group has the following material capital commitrnents:

Avaroa Cable Limited
Avaroa Cable Limited has the following capital commitments at balance date:

Subcom, per the Supply Contract for the design, manufacture, installation, integration, testing and comrmissioning of the
Manutua Cable System. At 30 June 2023, Avaroa Cable Limited's remaining share of the commitment to Subcom under this
contract is USD $270,730 {2022; USD $270,730)

Avarca Cable Limited entered into a contract with Land Holdings Limited for the construction of cable landings stations in Rarotonga and
Aitutaki. At 30 June 2023, Avaroa Cable Limited’s remaining share of the commitment to Land Holdings under this contract is USD
$14,484,383 (2022: $12,355,778)

Operating lease rentals
The Group as lessee
Future minimurn lease payments under non-cancellsble operating leases:

Group Parent

30 June
2022

in thousands of New Zealand Doflars

Land and Buildings

Due within one year

Due within two to five years
Later than five years

Total operating lease expense
commitments

Bank of the Cook Islands Limited

The Bank leases land on which BC! House stands under an operating lease. The original deed of lease runs for 60 years from 1
April 1967

The Bank also leases the Aitutaki branch premises, the lease runs for 15 years from 1 January 2019,

Airport Authority
The Authority leases land that is utilised for Airport operations, accommedating office premises and other tenanted buldings.

Te Aponga Uira
The Authority leases land that is utilised for electricty services, accommedating office premises, solar farms and various sites
for transforrner shelters.

Cook Islands Govemment Property Corporation
The Corporation holds long term land leases. Most of these leases are for 20 - 60 year terms and are perpetually renewable.

To Tatgu Vai
The Authority holds leases its office pramises including Airport Heuse 3 and 4 for two years frem 1 July 2021,
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Mote

24 Commitments and contingencies (continued)
Operating lease rentals {continued}

The Group as lessor
Future minimum lgase income under non-cancellable operating leases:

Group Parent
&  30.June
2022

30 June
2022

In thousands of New Zealand Doliars

Buildings

Due within one year

Due within one 1o two years
Due within two to five years
Total

The Group lets properties under cperating leases. Property rental income earned on cperating eases during the year was
$896,00Q (2022: $614,000).

Other Commitments ‘
The Group through Bank of the Cook Islands has committed to lending a number of loans in the future that have not yet been drawn
down. As at 30 June 2023 these undrawn loans total $1,742,000 (2022: $1,187,000).

Contingencies
The Group is currently aware of the contingent liabilities listed below. Various other contingent liabllities may exist having arisen over
the earlier period of the Corporation's existence of which the Members of the Corporation are not aware.

Uncalled Capital
Asian Developmeant Bank — the Corporation has a further 88 uncalled shares. The shares have a par value of USD13,500 each.

Grant Funding

The New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade {NZ MFAT) has provided funding to the Government of the Cook Isiands {CIG)
under the Grant Funding Agreement {GFA) dated & April 2018 to implement the Pacific Connectivity Project — the construction of the
Manatua Submarine Cable. Grant funding of $10.1 million was provided for under the GFA dated 6 April 2018. The funding activity is in
refation to the Cook Islands participation in the Manatua Cable consertium, and the Cock Islands contribution to the consortium for
Cook Islands contribution towards the Manatua Cable as a consortium member. A variation to the GFA was entered into between
hoth parties on 23 November 2018, increasing the grant funding from $10.1 million to $15.0 million. The grant funding is disbursed
from NZ MFAT to the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management (MFEM) Development Coordination Bivision (DCD) and this is
then either disbursed to the respective agency incurring the requisite costs or directly to suppliers.

At balance date, the funds received from NZ MFAT and its disbursemants is disclosed in the following table.

Pre 30/6/2021 30/06/2022 Total
Opening balance 2,046 -
Funds received by DCO from NZ MFAT under the GFA 156,000 - 15,000
Funds disbursed from DCD to ACL for Manatua project operating and capital costs {12,779} {726 (14,352}
Funds disbursed from DCD to other CIG agencies for costs incurred {175) {96) ; (299)
Foreign exchange gainfiloss) in USD held by DCD 33 ‘ 29
Balance of funds received by DCD from NZ MFAT under the GFA 2,045 1,267 378

There were no further contingent assets or liabilities as at balance date.
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Note

Note

25 Segmental Reporting
The Group operates primarily in the property investment and managernent sectors. It also operates in the utilities sector, consisting of
ports and airport services, power supply and banking.

Industry Segments
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Balance as at 30 June 2022

Trading Revenue 10,397 3,958 615 20,607 4,636 2,953 42,966
Crown Appropriation - - 10,262 - 2,048 120 12,420
Other Revenue 144 459 695 369 1,220 b 2,892
Expenses {10,644) {4,729) {15,158) {20,992} {2,401) {2,972} (63,796)
Other Gains / (Losses) 8 {(2,674) (1) 127 2 {280) {2,818)
Surplus / {Deficit) before tax 5 {2,986} (3,597) 1" (1,595) (174) (8,336)
Total Assets 138,304 44,987 74,606 66,323 72,032 32,066 428,315
Total Liabilities 114,812 22,127 9,172 3,308 580 19,874 169,683
Capital Expenditure 160 2,401 770 1,018 3,461 578 8,387

26 Going Concern

These financial statements have been prapared on the going cancern basis. The Corporation is ultimately dependent on the support of
the Government by Crown Appropriation. In addition, the liquidity of the Corporation is inherently dependent cn the proceeds from the
managaement and disposal of its assets, the value and potential returns of which are uncertain. Despite this, there are no known
matters that suggest the support of the Government will be withdrawn or that the proceeds from the asset management and disposal
will be insufficient to meet the requirements of the Corperation for the foreseeable future. The Cook Islands Government has provided
a letter of support stating that it will maintain ownership and control of the group for the foreseeable future and will provide financial
assisstance where necessary for the group to continue its operaticns.
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Note

27

Subsequent Events

The Group continueas to take varicus measures to mitigate the residual impacts of Coronavirus/Covid-19 on its operations
including employees and customers. The key impacts cn Group entities are described in Note 3 and throughout the notes to
the financial statemants where applicable.

Subsequent to year end:

Airport Authority

Subsequent to year end, there is an ongeing review with experts and iegal representatives for the defects identified within
phase-1 of the Runway Slab project.

Three defective slabs have been identified as reguiring replacement. These slabs continue to be used to-date as part of the
Authority's normal operations. Estirmated costs to replace impaired runway slabs is $180,000. These are expectad to be
maintained and where confirmed by experts to be raplaced. The cost of replacement will be recognised when werks are
completed. The impairment at year end is considered immaterial 1o these financial statements

Cook Island Government Property Corporation
Subseguent to year end, the board of directors for Telecom Cock Islands Ltd declared and paid dividends totaliing $6,000,000.

Negotiations continue with landowners for the extension of the BCI premises lease that expires in 2027. The formal terms and
conditions including censideration are yet to be agreed.

There have been no cther subseguent events.
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Note 28 Crown Reporting

Statement of Crown Reporting
As at 30 June 2023

Crown Appropriations

2023
Carry Carry
Forward Forward to Final

In thousands of New Zealand Doflars Budget  from 2022 Transfers 2024 Approgriation Spend Vartance
Buik Funding
Persannel 1,458 1,458 1,654 {196)
Oparating 824 824 1,632 {808)
Deprecistion 45 45 59 [14)

33727 - - - 7,327 3,345 {1,018)
The variance has been funded from other revenue and dividends recaived and reserves,
Administered Payments
Infrastructure Committes 100 12 112 117 {5)
Government Facility Development Divislon 420 [40) 280 357 22
Scheol Security 230 20 250 250 -
Joint Venture with Seabed Minerals Authority 50 50 48 2
Provision for Land Rentals 400 3 408 408 -

1,200 - - - 1,200 1,180 20
Payments on hehalf of the Crown (POBOC)
Bank of the Cook Islands-social assistance subsldy 128 128 128 -
Airport Autherity subsidy 2,048 2,048 2,048 -
Ports Authority - subsidy 110 110 110 -
Te Tatou Val (CI) 3,000 3,000 3,088 (38)

5,286 - - - 5,286 5,374 (88)
Capital Expenditure
Aftutaki Island Plan & Orongo Development 500 422 350 1,272 1,274 {2)
Govt Building Projects - Rarotonga 1,079 643 480 {650} 1,562 1,521 41
Pa Enua Govt Building Projects - Nerthern Group 500 77 25 {90} 512 511 1
Pa Enua Govt Building Projects - Southern Group 500 125 (100) 525 524 1
Arcrangi Prison Remedial Works 30 30 28 2
Land Acquisition 700 {800) {95) 5 - 5
Rarotonga Cyclone Shelters - Remediatien 400 - {200) 200 180 20
To Tatou Vai 3,000 (190} {2,450) 360 360 -
Airport Authority - Rarotonga Airport Slab 850 (780) 70 70 -

7,528 1,172 - {4,165) 4,536 4,468 53
Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI}

Group Parent

In thousands of Nevw Zeaiand Dollars Actual 50 Actual 5C1
Total Revenue 67,458 72,888 8,974 8,000
Earning before interest, depreciation & tax 11,085 21,641 83) 250
Net profit before tax (6,557) 9,928 (142) 200
Total Assets 437,314 578,339 10,794 5,400
Total Shareholders Funds 256,827 418,130 881 2,127
Total Dividends Paid 240 600 240 600

Budget amounts have been extrected from the 2021-2025 Budget Book Estimate dated and signed by Hon. Mark Brown on 8th june 2021,
Statement of Corporate Intent amounts have been extracted from CHC Statement of Corporate Intent 2023-2026.
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Statement of Crown Reporting
As at 30 June 2023

Crown Appropriations
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2022
Carry Carry
Forward Forward to Final

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Budget from 2021 Transfers 2023 Appropriation Spend Variante
Bul Funding
Persannel 1,508 1,508 1,453 55
Oparating 974 974 1,650 (676)
Crepreciation 45 45 61 {16)

2,527 - - - 2,527 3,164 [637)
The varianca has been funded from other revenue recefved and reservas,
Administered Payments
Infrastructure Committee 100 100 129 {29)
Government Facllity Davelepment Division 420 420 456 (36)
Scheol Security 180 40 220 258 (38}
lalnt Venture with Seabed Minerals Authority 50 (40) 10 5 5
Provision for Land Rentals 500 500 495 5

1,250 - - - 1,250 1,343 {93)
Payments on behalf of the Crown (POBQC)
Bank of the Cock Islands-soclal assistance subsidy 128 128 128 -
Airport Authority subsidy 2,048 2,048 2,048 -
Ports Authority - subsidy 110 110 110 -
Te Tatou Vai (CI) 3,000 3,000 2,991 3

5,288 - - - 5,285 5,277 5
Capital Expenditure
Aitutaki Island Plan & Orongo Development 1,000 500 {422) 1,078 1,096 {18)
Govt Building Projects - Rarotonga 2,200 838 (643) 2,445 2,491 [48)
Pa Enua Govt Building Projects - Northern Group

550 7 473 528 {55)
Pa Enua Govt Building Projects - Southern Group
400 400 455 {55}

Arorangi Prison Remedial Works 150 (30) 120 132 (12}
Land Acquisition 700 700 - 700
Rarotonga Cyclone Shelters - Remediation 100 - 100 86 14
To Tatou Vai 3,000 (1,388} 1,612 484 1,128

8,100 - - 1,172) 6,928 5,272 1,656
Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI)

Group Parent

in thouysands of New Zealand Doflers Actual sal Actual sl
Total Revenue 58,278 64,046 8,553 8,000
Earning kefore interest, depreciation & tax 5,776 10,701 (851) (100}
Met profit before tax {8,326) (1,012} 912) (150)
Total Azsets 428,315 529,289 10,066 5,300
Total Shareholders Funds 258,532 370,030 1,250 1,927

Total Dividends Paidl - -

Budget amounts have been extracted from the 2021-2025 Budget Book Estimate dated and signed by Hon. Mark Brown on 8th June 2021,
Statement of Corporate Intent amounts have been extracted from CHIC Statement of Corporate Intent 2022-2026,
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